
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

Tuesday, 27 October 2020 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Notice is given that a Virtual meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be 

held on MONDAY, 2ND NOVEMBER, 2020 which will start at 7.00 pm. 
Zoom Link:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85881824672  
 

All members of the committee are summoned to attend to consider and resolve 
upon the business to be transacted at the meeting. 

 
Claire Gilbert, Deputy Town Clerk. 

Councillors Serving: 
M. Carter, V. Cole, J. Crawford (Chair), Mrs. J. Curteis, Dr.  L. Lovelidge (Vice-Chair), K. Mulholland, R. Parkin 
and R. Quinton. 
 
PARTICIPATION BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: Members of the public can make representation at this 
meeting by submitting a request to speak (indicating the relevant agenda item) to the Town Clerk’s office no 
later than midday on the day of the meeting. Speakers must be resident in Tenterden, and give their name and 
street of residence when asked to speak. Representations will be invited at the relevant point in the meeting. 
Speeches may not exceed three minutes and speakers may not participate in any subsequent debate. At the 
Chairman’s discretion, only one speech may be made in support of each side of any contentious issue. 
 

AGENDA 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 

3.   MINUTES.  
To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the minutes and report of 
the meeting held on 5th October 2020. 

 
4.   MATTERS ARISING.  

 
5.   COUNCILLORS QUESTIONS.  

At the Chairman’s discretion Councillors may ask a question about any relevant matter not on the agenda. Questions shall be put and 

answered without discussion. Answers may take the form of a direct oral answer or reference to a Town Council publication. Where a 

reply cannot be conveniently given an oral or written answer may be circulated at a later date. 

 
6.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS.  

To consider the following applications. 
 
20/01186/AS  Grooms Cottage, Ingleden Park, Swain 

Road. 
Proposed erection of a single storey outbuilding 

to create holiday let accommodation. 
Application for full planning permission. 
ST. MICHAEL’S WARD. 

 
20/01300/AS  Peels Cottage, 2 Ashford Road.  

Remove existing wooden sash window and 
replace with identical wooden sash window with 
double glazed glass. 

Application for listed building consent. 
NORTH WARD. 

Public Document Pack

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85881824672
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116414&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116579&pageindex=0


 

 
20/01305/AS  St. Michael’s Church of England Primary 

School, Ashford Road. 

Single storey front entrance. 
Application for full planning permission. 

ST. MICHAEL’S WARD 
 

20/01340/AS  Boarzell, Ox Lane. 

Detached oak framed cart lodge. 
Application for full planning permission. 

ST. MICHAEL’S WARD. 
 

20/01353/AS  Fairlight, Cranbrook Road. 

Conversion of existing redundant brick building 
to form a single dwelling. 

Application for full planning permission. 
WEST WARD. 
 

20/01359/AS  109 High Street. 
Provision of parking space within front garden 

area and partial removal of hedge. 
Application for full planning permission. 

SOUTH WARD. 
 

20/01385/AS  3 Lawn Close. 

First floor rear extension & replacement of 
balustrade to front elevation. 

Application for full planning permission. 
WEST WARD. 
 

20/01406/AS  Brattle House, Cranbrook Road. 
Proposed replacement of modern outbuilding 

with a building which is to be multi-function and 
ancillary to the main house. 
Application for full planning permission. 

WEST WARD. 
 

20/01422/AS  Larkfield, Appledore Road. 
Single storey rear and single storey side 
extension. 

Application for full planning permission. 
SOUTH WARD. 

 
20/01437/AS  Coopers Lodge rear of 64 High Street. 

Construction of a mobility scooter storage 

building. 
Application for full planning permission. 

NORTH WARD. 
 

 

7.   REPRESENTATIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC.  

Previously notified to the Chairman. 
 

8.   NOTIFICATION OF DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS. (PAGE 1) 
List No. 027. * 
 

9.   DECISIONS OF THE ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL PLANNING 
COMMITTEE. (PAGES 2 - 3) 

https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116587&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116642&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116670&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116677&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116714&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116743&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116670&pageindex=0
https://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116781&pageindex=0


 

List No. 596. * 
 

10.   SUB-COMMITTEE & WORKING GROUPS. (PAGES 4 - 6) 

 
(a) Selective Neighbourhood Plan Working Group. Feedback from a 

meeting held on 7th October 2020.* 
 

11.   CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS FOR REFORM OF THE PLANNING 

SYSTEM IN ENGLAND (PAGES 7 - 34) 
 

To note: 
 
(a) Response to Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 

consultation. * 
 

(b) Response to Housing, Communities & Local Government Select 
Committee Inquiry. * 

 

12.   FINANCIAL REPORTS (PAGES 35 - 36) 
 

To approve the following reports. * 
 

(a) Planning Committee Income & Expenditure (at 30th September 
2020). 

 

(b) Neighbourhood Plan Income & Expenditure (at 30th September 
2020). 

 
13.   CONSERVATION AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN. (PAGE 37) 

 

To consider the request of the High Street Regeneration Sub-Committee 
to look at a colour palette for Tenterden for the High Street shop 

frontages as part of the Conservation Area Management Plan.* 
 

14.   MINOR MATTERS. (PAGES 38 - 47) 

 
(a) Public Footpath AB32 (Part) Public Path Diversion Order 2015. To 

note the diversion of a section of AB32. * 
 
(b) Public Footpath AB32 (Part) Certification Notice of Coming into 

Force Public Path Diversion Order 2015.  To note the requirement 
of an alternative highway of a section of AB32.* 

 
(c) Enforcement Appeal – Golan Croft, Cranbrook Road. To note an 

Enforcement Appeal made to Ashford Borough Council in relation to 

a breach of planning control.* 
 

(d) Appeal Decision on 19/01781/AS Land adjoining the north side of 
Hallmark Farm, Ashford Road, St. Michaels. To note the Planning 
Appeal Decision made by the The Planning Inspectorate in relation 

to an appeal made by the applicant of the Land adjoining the north 
side of Hallmark Farm, Ashford Road, St. Michaels against the 

decision of Ashford Borough Council. * 
 

15.   CORRESPONDENCE.  

None. 
 



 

16.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED TO THE 
CHAIRMAN.  
No decision may be made, but matters involving an exchange of information may be discussed. 

 

 
End. 
 
 
 Attachments and tabled documents can be obtained from the Town Clerk’s office or read on the Town 

Council website www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. 



 

 

TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE  2nd November 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 9 DISCHARGE LIST NO. 027 

 
APPLICATIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS. 

To note that the following applications have been made for Discharge of Conditions: 
 

Planning Applications: 

  
  

19/00715/CONB/AS Land at Homewood School adjoining Fire Station, 
Ashford Road. 

Discharge of condition 2. 
PERMIT. 

 
  
  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8

http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116376


 

 

TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 2nd November 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 10 DECISIONS LIST NO. 596 

 
DECISIONS OF ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL’S PLANNING COMMITTEE. 

The following decisions have been made: 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS: 

 
 

20/00988/AS 1 Grove Cottage, Smallhythe Road.  
Variation of condition 2 on planning permission 
18/01636/AS (Erection of 2no. semi-detached 

dwellings in part of existing garden with associated 
parking and new access) to alter the approved 

external materials. 
PERMIT. 
 

20/00976/AS Belgar Farmhouse, Appledore Road.  
Proposed extension to existing detached garage to 

provide two additional parking bays and a log store. 
PERMIT. 

 
20/01025/AS Unit 12, Pickhill Farm, Smallhythe Road.  

Prior notification of change of use of building and land 

(B1) to registered nursery. 
PRIOR APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED. 

 
20/01103/AS Westways, Six Fields Path.  

Proposed two storey rear extension, single storey 

rear and side extension, alterations to front elevation 
with addition of porch and demolition of existing 

outbuilding. 
PERMIT. 
 

20/01109/AS 2 Holly Tree Cottages, Appledore Road.  
Demolition of existing stable buildings and 

replacement stable block with associated sand school 
for private equestrian use. 
PERMIT. 

 
20/01111/AS High Weald, Cherry Orchard.  

Lawful development certificate - proposed - 
conversion of integral garage to habitable 
accommodation. 

PROPOSED USE/DEVELOPMENT WOULD BE 
LAWFUL. 

 
20/01151/AS Brockett Farm, Reading Street.  

Conversion of outbuilding into annex. 

REFUSE. 
 

20/01163/AS  Smallhythe Studio, Smallhythe Old Village Hall, 
Smallhythe Road. 
Prior approval for change of use of building and land 

Page 2

Agenda Item 9

http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116132
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116114
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116181
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116287
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116295
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116298
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116361
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116377


 

 

within its curtilage from B1(c) light industrial to 
residential dwelling C3. 

PRIOR APPROVAL IS GIVEN.  
 

20/01187/AS 3 Grove Cottage, Smallhythe Road.  
Replacement front porch. 
PERMIT. 

 
20/01195/AS Aidens, Cranbrook Road.  

Lawful development certificate - proposed - garage 
conversion and new bay window to front elevation. 
PROPOSED USE/DEVELOPMENT NOT LAWFUL. 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
TREE APPLICATIONS: 

 

 

20/00185/TP 93 High Street.  

T1 Oak Tree - 70% by volume canopy reduce and 
maintain biennially to 2019 canopy dimensions. 
GRANT CONSENT. 

 

Page 3

http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116415
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/Planning/details.aspx?systemkey=116425
http://planning.ashford.gov.uk/treeApplications/details.aspx?systemkey=62295


 

 
 

Steering Committee Meeting 7 October 2020 
 
 
 

Present:    Apologies:  
Cllr J Crawford  
Cllr J Curteis   Joseph Franklin 
Cllr K Walder   Helen Whitehead  
Irene Dibben      
Richard Masefield  
Siggi Nepp 
Sue Quinton    
Samantha Reed 
Stephen Sidebottom   
Graham Smith 
 
 

1. Minutes of September 2020 were accepted and approved  
 

2. Matters Arising 
The Committee noted the decision on Limes Land and that any appeal has to be within 6 
months of the determination. Richard thanked the committee for their input.  
 

3.  White Paper and implications for Neighbourhood Plans  
John has submitted an official comment on the White Paper from the TC Planning Committee. 
He highlighted the key elements of the Paper which in his view will have most bearing on 
neighbourhood planning. These included: 

1)  the importance of building in the local vernacular with an emphasis on ‘beauty’ 
(however that’s defined) 

2) density commensurate with the local area 
3) an increased emphasis on the importance of design codes 
4) support for the importance of routeways 
5) an acknowledgement of the benefit of tree-lined streets (with particular application 

to Tenterden) 
6) opportunities for improving public access, with relevance to routeways 
7) the creation of woodland where it can be accommodated 
8) additional emphasis on the protection of wildlife habitats and ecosystems, especially 

those of national importance or significance to local communities 
9) the importance of historic buildings and their protection 
10) the importance of conservation areas (this will be handled as a separate project by 

TTC). 

Page 4

Agenda Item 10



The relevance of these points to the existing and future work of the Committee, its working 
groups and the Town Council was discussed – especially noting the increased importance of 
design codes and the ecological aspects of Local Green Space protection. 
 

The Steering Committee’s own response to the White Paper, prepared in draft by Helen and 
already circulated to committee members, was unanimously agreed for submission with a 
copy to the Town Council, with a vote of thanks to Helen for all the work that she has put into 
it. Subsequently it was clarified that Helen would submit the formal response to MHCLG. 

 

4. Workstream activity Logs 

In place of ongoing reports, working groups have completed sections of a Workstream Action 

Log prepared by Stephen to record work needed to complete Phase A. The Log comprises 15 

subheadings with columns to record target dates and Consultant/Committee sign-offs on 

completion. 

1) LGS. Richard confirmed a date of 15 Oct. for completion of sieves, methodology 

summary, short-list and map of sites for LGS designation. 

2) Landscape Character. Siggi confirmed that maps and summary of the work will be 

completed by 10 October and circulated to the committee 

3) Important Public Views. Photographed views are being considered against the criteria 

and community comments, collated and mapped with help from Helen and the LGS group. 

Date for completion to be confirmed. 

4) Built Up Confines Boundary. Work is complete 

5) Design Codes. The White Paper increases the importance of this work. Meeting to be 

set up with AECOM with further work requiring Consultant’s help to be added to Phase B. 

6) & 7) Shop Fronts and Advertisements studies to be completed by 21 Oct. for perhaps a 

simple statement in the NP? 

8) Tenterden Town Centre Boundary. Stephen to discuss with Helen a possible completion 

date of 21 Oct. 

9) Town Centre Markets. Target for completing recommendations and mapping, 21 Oct. 

10) Town Centre Survey Report. The Committee will wait and respond to the report from 

the Town Council Regeneration Committee 

11) Existing Business Sites. Graham agreed to help Stephen with a target completion date 

30 Oct. The work may result in a short statement supported by evidence. The committee 

discussed which areas to focus on as employment sites 

12) Business Needs Assessment. Following a disappointing response so far, Jean and Kate 

agreed to take the survey forward for completion in Phase B. Committee members to 

identify 2 or 3 businesses for which they have contacts.  

13) Tourist Accommodation. Analysis is complete (on Dropbox). Summary to be 

completed 15 Oct. 

14) Recreation and Leisure Open Space. Sue agreed to review the ABC 2017 Open Space 

Strategy, to ensure all Tenterden recreation areas are included, and liaise with Irene on a 

completion date. 

15) Routeways. Existing evidence requires (maybe a half day’s?) discussion with the 

Consultant to determine objectives and connections with e.g.: Design Codes, Heritage and 

Green Space. Estimated completion by 30 Oct. 

Page 5



The Committee asked Stephen to talk with Tony ,setting out the Committee’s aims to 

complete Phase A by the end of October. 
 

5. & 6. 

The Committee discussed and voted on Stephen’s and Irene’s papers to decide a positive 

way forward for the Plan Committee, working with Tony Fullwood through Phases B and 

C, with Stephen agreeing to project manage the process. It has become clear that, as a 

result of broadened scope and the demands of the White Paper, the project will require 

more funding. The necessity of reaching Regulation 14 without delay was discussed. The 

plan is to complete Phase A by the end of the month, with Phases B and C to be re-

planned, timed and costed with the aim of achieving Regulation 14 by the end of the 

financial year. Stephen to liaise with Tony Fullwood to this end. 

  The committee discussed other sources of funding. It was agreed that Kate and Sue will 

complete an application for funds from the Brissenden Trust. 
 

7. Budget  

Remaining funds in Town Council and anticipated Locality budgets, total £17,049.18. 
 

8. AOB  
The Committee proposed a presentation of work achieved on the Neighbourhood Plan, 

followed by another to the full Town Council, before the end of the calendar year. 

November was suggested for the first presentation, with the second to the full Council in 

December. John to discuss with the Town Clerk and Jean Curteis. Subsequently, it was 

agreed the formal presentation would be given to the TTC Planning Committee on 

Monday 7th December, and to the Full Council on 14th December.  

 
Next SC meeting is scheduled for 4 November. Irene will email the Committee with Zoom 
links nearer the time 
 

Page 6



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

1 

 

Questions and Answers  
1. What three words do you associate most with the planning system in England?  
Greed , Misrepresentation, Carnage 
These words in isolation will be misrepresented and it is important they are understood within the 
context of all the responses below. 
The current planning system, is open to abuse by “greedy” developers and landowners forcing up house 
prices; applications can “misrepresent” the facts to be assessed of the suitability and sustainability of sites; 
and development that could cause “carnage” of our valuable countryside and biodiversity if it were not 
for the forensic examination by LPAs and the community.  
2(a). Do you get involved with planning decisions in your local area? [Yes / No]  
Yes 
2(b). If no, why not? [Don’t know how to / It takes too long / It’s too complicated / I don’t care / Other – 
please specify]  
N/A 
3. Our proposals will make it much easier to access plans and contribute your views to planning 
decisions. How would you like to find out about plans and planning proposals in the future? [Social 
media / Online news / Newspaper / By post / Other – please specify]  
Other.  
Foreword. 
We all know that planning and application decision making is a complex subject. Particularly with each 
LPA having different opportunities, issues, concerns and constraints. In our view it is not possible to 
apply centralised control and rules without undesirable consequences. How can it? 
The consequences of this white paper introduce a central set of policies that will disenfranchise, 
supress, and remove localism decision making. Today, the local plan contains specific development 
management policies for the borough taking into account all the relevant attributes and constraints, and 
should continue to do so.  
It is essential for local authorities to be allowed a similar level of flexibility to set development 
management policies (as under the current Local Plans system), with the exception that policies should 
not duplicate the National Planning Policy Framework. This would be the correct approach and one that 
the community can have faith in, if it is seen to be even-handed, whilst providing housing that is 
required for each different borough. 
The white paper moves significantly more power to MHCLG  and developers from the LPAs, parishes and 
local communities, with the aim to deregulate and let market forces have a much greater say where 
houses are built. 
Promoting Community Involvement. 
Very worryingly, there is no single initiative, to improve democracy and scrutiny. Only to impose from 
the centre and let market forces rule. To say the community will be able to trust the planning system 
again is so misleading. The man in the street will not buy this argument. 
Access to Plans. 
It is vital to be informed about plans and planning proposals in a variety of ways: social media, online 
news, newspaper, by post in addition to the methods employed at present. To only select one method 
would target only one sector of the community. 
The proposal to move to a radical digital first approach, by moving from documents to data is a good 
objective and can be adopted whatever planning system we chose. However, this does not lend itself to 
better place-making or greater democracy. Transparency is to be welcomed, but not at the expense of 
public engagement.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 11



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

2 

 

Harnessing digital technology is fine for those who are computer literate. What about those who are not 
computer literate, or cannot afford to purchase digital technology? Without the MHCLG answering and 
mitigating this question, you will disenfranchise a large sector of the community. 
When asking for opinions, social media can be  very divisive with extreme views by a tiny minority of the 
community. This will distort the planning message and put people off communicating their views so they 
are not victimised. 
You cannot expect the community to look for information about plans, they must be provided with 
information from the local council proactively. It is the old perpetual argument of “push” and “pull” 
method of communicating. The notice on the lamppost pushes out information. How will the majority of 
the community know there is a planning application without those notices? Yes, you can sign up online 
for notification to pull information, but I would imagine that is for a tiny proportion of the community. 
It is for MHCLG task force promoting digital technology, to come up with the answers, otherwise the 
whole aspiration collapses. No task force should put forward solutions if they do not know how to 
implement. Therefore, we see no evidence that it will be easier to know about forthcoming plans. 
Contributing to Planning Decisions. 
Contributing views on local plans and applications is part of a mature democratic process. It is both 
healthy and essential to ensure that decisions are not regretted for generations to come. 
This white paper reduces democratic oversight of planning committees and replaces a system (though 
imperfect in places) with a light touch fast-tracked system granting automatic planning permission for a 
type of building within the designated zone. In essence this reform will exclude and restrict key stages of 
the planning process, and will make it harder for people to contribute their views to planning decisions. 
Growth and renewal zones appear to have no oversight or community consultation, whereas 'protected 
areas' would have some retention of a  planning process community involvement.   This is unacceptable. 
With this scheme, community voices will be drowned out by restrictive rules, shortened consultation 
periods, and unable to present local views on specific applications where mitigation actions are required 
(often unknown at the LPA level). Developers will often hide issues so there is never debate about 
necessary mitigation. 
The whole white paper will reduce community engagement and the democratic process.  The outcome 
will be a shift towards totalitarianism. It is naïve to think that one can achieve democracy though 
digitisation. Local people need to be more included from place making through to application decision 
making. It is important that the LPA and the community get the developments they need and in the right 
places.  
Focusing on design codes, though good will never replace the scrutiny of whether the houses are being 
built in the right place. It ensures agreed site allocation builds are constructed sympathetically. 
Contributing to Neighbourhood Plans. 
Neighbourhood plans make a crucial role in producing required design guides and codes to provide 
certainty and reflect local character and preferences about the form and appearance of development.  
This should be at the top of the design codes hierarchy. 
4. What are your top three priorities for planning in your local area? [Building homes for young people / 
building homes for the homeless / Protection of green spaces / The environment, biodiversity and action 
on climate change / Increasing the affordability of housing / The design of new homes and places / 
Supporting the high street / Supporting the local economy / More or better local infrastructure / 
Protection of existing heritage buildings or areas / Other – please specify]  
Other.  
Foreword. 
All are important to a successful place making with the environment, infrastructure and design / 
vernacular being at the top for place making. 
Planning Factors. 

Page 8



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

3 

 

There are so many factors when considering housing development, such as local designated protection 
areas, capacity of infrastructure and utilities, environmental impact, sustainable transport and so on. 
Without focusing on all these aspects before accepting development proposals would be a disaster now 
and for future generations.  
There is no point allocating a growth zone, if the infrastructure is not there or is too expensive or time 
consuming to build capacity.   
Disfranchising Environmental Drivers. 
Though the white paper mentions the Defra 25-year environment plan, how is it going to be linked? So 
often aspiration falls on stony ground and withers, as potentially this will be the case. 
Within the document there is a section on effective stewardship and enhancement of our natural and 
historic environment. NOT one question on this subject was asked within this consultation. This speaks 
volumes on the importance the white paper and task force has placed on this subject. Do you want the 
community to jump to the wrong conclusion this white paper is just paying lip service? The environment 
will be side-lined, as a number of developers attempt to do at present. It is up to parish councillors and 
members of the public to point out the evidence and show it does not comply with the NPPF and local 
plans. The LPA does not have the resources or knowledge to know when the developer is hoodwinking 
them. 
Environmental assessments are not quick activities as there are so many elements to consider and 
investigate. Quick can and will probably mean cursory, which would be totally unacceptable.  
The white paper wants to replace the environmental impact assessment (EIA) process with a ‘simplified 
process’ for assessing environmental impact. Again, little detail is provided and developers will have the 
ability to ignore environmental concerns with more impunity. How will the simplified process continue 
to provide this same level of protection around the environmental impact? All zones must have areas 
designated within them that shield local landscape character areas, local wildlife sites, etc from any 
development. Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act, came into force on 1st 
October 2006, which requires the Secretary of State to publish a list of habitats and species which are of 
principle importance for the conservation of biodiversity in England. This list is maintained and updated 
by the JNCC. Any new planning law has to refer to this list as potentially it will dedicate areas that have 
to be protected as sub areas within growth and renewal zones, and / or a protection zone in its own 
right. What is the point of having these local designations if they are not enforced? Everything must be 
on a level playing field, otherwise the new proposals will be more biased than it is at present. 
Planning Components. 
We propose that there are four concurrent sub plans being part of the local plan. These four plans 
would be: economy; infrastructure; environment (including climate change and green space); and finally 
housing needs. These four sub plans would then create a place-making local plan. We cannot see how 
we will achieve an acceptable local plan, without going through those steps, otherwise we will build in 
the WRONG PLACES. 
5. Do you agree that Local Plans should be simplified in line with our proposals? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.] 
No.  Also see response to question (3) above. 
Foreword. 
MHCLG is criticising local authorities for not building enough homes, when in fact there are over 1 
million homes with planning permission that are not being delivered by developers. This number 
equates to over three years of housing needs, so there should be no shortage of availability. MHCLG is 
placing the blame of slow delivery at the wrong door, when in fact they should be  
 introducing levers to force developers to build more quickly. 

Page 9

https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity/targets/


Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

4 

 

The proposals are unsound, reckless and unwarranted. It would not solve housing needs through 
dramatically reducing existing planning controls and scrutiny, but would allow an explosion of 
uncontrolled building on our valuable countryside. 
The current system embraces democracy by allowing LPAs and parish councils, plus the local community 
to forensically examine and challenge planning applications submitted by developers. This ensures we as 
a community, get the best possible outcome for the right type of developments, built in the right place, 
in the right numbers.  
The white paper proposal is both combative and radical, but fails dismally to show any evidence that 
their proposal is right. Only that the proposal follows the government’s agenda.  
The MHCLG proposals will marginalise local decision making, and substantially reduce consultation away 
from Ashford and our community for deciding where developments should take place and prevent 
analysing the sustainability of applications. 
This white paper is long on aspiration and short on detail. The old proverb of “act in haste and repent at 
leisure” is so pertinent in this situation. Unfortunately, the country’s whole community will be 
collectively repenting for generations if this white paper goes through.  
The white paper has missed the mark by not understanding the real problem and glossed over the steps 
HOW to achieve place making in practical terms.  
The positive contribution the community and parish councils can make has to be recognised. To ignore 
them is at MHCLG’s peril. “Planning for the Future” must not move to a totalitarianism approach, but a 
participative approach to strengthen local decision-making, through building a strong alliance of local 
authorities and communities. 
We all agree that all LPAs should have a local plan in place. However, the new process squeezes out the 
local community who have the local knowledge of their specific parish. This will result in zero confidence 
of the community of MHCLG, developers, the local plan and future applications. To create more 
resilience through these proposals is not going to be achieved, unless it means build regardless and 
ignore the colossal adverse consequences.  
Instilling Community Trust. 
The white paper states there is only a seven per cent trust in their local council. The whole set of quoted 
statistics in the white paper has been “cherry picked” and taken out of context from the July 2019 
Grosvenor Report Rebuilding Trust. An important statistic the white paper does not say, is that only 2 
per cent trust developers – one third of that for councils. The Grosvenor report concluded there are 
three areas that can improve public trust: 
a) Profits / value package. Show that developers deliver much more than just profit, that they consider 

local needs and deliver long term value to the community 
b) Accountability. Show that there are effective mechanisms to hold developers (and the local council) 

to account on their promises 
c) Public influence. Give the public meaningful input on development decisions, involving them early 

with limited barriers to entry and actual influence on  decisions that matter 
Points (a) and (b) have been basically ignored in the white paper, and for point (c), the white paper is 
disingenuous on improving public involvement. How can we trust MHCLG, if it misrepresents facts to fit 
their agenda?  
Many academics have recently said that developers have “a huge amount of power in our planning 
system already leading to a “huge lack of trust” in the planning system from communities.  The white 
paper proposal will exacerbate the problem. 
Vision and Problem Solving. 
The white paper says it wishes to rediscover the original mission, but fails to state what the vision going 
forward should be. A major blunder. The stated wish list comes over as a list of intentions, rather than a 
proper achievable vision with measurable objectives. Another fiasco. 

Page 10



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

5 

 

Where is the problem statement? The white paper should articulate the area of concern and the 
condition to be improved upon, that points to the need for meaningful understanding, deliberate 
investigation and documentation of reliable evidence. There is a difference between perceived problem 
and the actual problem. Where is the evidence that shows MHCLG have correctly identified and 
understood the real problem? 
Symptoms associated with the problem tend to be confusing when trying to identify the real problem.  
They are often considered before the real problem is understood, especially when there is a specific 
government agenda. It is extremely important to avoid jumping to solutions until a profound 
understanding of the current state is achieved. Establishing root cause cannot be over stated. 
Sadly, in our opinion, the problem identification process is seriously defective and thus came up with the 
wrong solution.  
MHCLG and the task force have not understood the barriers to delivering enough homes, as they have 
not undertaken an unbiased and industry standard methodical assessment of the problem and 
symptoms. MHCLG have avoided getting relevant practitioners on board. 
MHCLG Task Force Composition. 
The proposals are not deliverable as no one has considered the practicality of how the value chain of the 
processes need to be redrawn due to the wrong composition of the task force, with missing 
practitioners of relevant disciplines.  
Looking at the MHCLG website, it appears that the task force was made up with from the legal 
profession; developers; real estate; economist; academician for urbanism; and scientific adviser.  
Where are the planning practitioners? Where are the masterplan and a large-scale planning designer 
(someone like Sir Terry Farrell)? Where are the zoning practitioners? In other words, no one from the 
planning process “coal face” who understands the value chain and could separate the perceived 
problem from the real problem for housing delivery.  
Why was there  no one from the real world to represent climate change and the environment; no one to 
represent infrastructure construction; no one to represent sustainability; no one to represent the local 
councils; and no one representing the  community like the citizen assembly for climate change?   
Yet this task force composition of members created by MHCLG have put forward proposals that have 
little bearing on the real challenges we face, but gives greater power to rules-based systems and 
developers.  
Flawed Proposals. 
Most readers will not be surprised why MHCLG have come up with these theoretical, biased and flawed 
proposals which would set the planning process back a decade. Being wedded to market forces does not 
solve housing delivery. 
The proposed “one size fits all” does not work – how can it? In one breath they say the top-down 
regional strategies and unelected regional planning bodies have been abolished, which will empower 
communities. Now the white paper wants to introduce a central set of policies that will disenfranchise, 
supress, and remove localism decision making. 
When there is a discussion over simplification of rules, we all know that means watered down with 
minimal discovery opportunities of the facts. Without the facts, wrong decisions will be made, 
particularly in the complex world of planning. 
We disagree that reliance no longer needs to be placed on local plan policies. It is these policies that 
reflect the ability to provide sustainable infrastructure, the need for protecting the environment and the 
character of the borough to ensure the right houses are built in the rights places at the right time. 
It must not be forgotten that  councils have little or no control over the speed of approved housing 
delivery, nor to our knowledge any sanctions to place on the developer if they sit on the land. Until this 
is seriously solved by MHCLG , the country will not move any faster in delivery, as it will be dictated to by 
the developers to maximise the profits for their shareholders.  

Page 11



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

6 

 

The recommendations would have been quite different, if the task force had consisted of  practitioners 
from relevant disciplines with relevant experience. The true problem would have been understood and 
correct solutions proposed. 
Housing Delivery. 
Planning today is not the cause of low numbers of delivery. It is the developers who have a million 
permissions for new homes that have never been built. All the time developers owe their allegiance to 
shareholders and not the community, it does not matter how many permissions are granted, delivery 
will continue to be governed by maintaining demand greater than supply for commercial reasons. 
The system is already biased towards the developer and these proposals strengthen their hand, making 
this new process a developer’s charter. It is even worse when an application is submitted, where the 
developer does not disclose relevant information that would have an adverse impact on the community. 
It is not reasonable or practical for the LPA to know these issues for the whole borough. 
There needs to be robust legal guarantees that the public are consulted regarding new local plans and 
developments. It is they who have the local knowledge going back decades and quite possibly 
generations.  
It talks about small sites, but one of the biggest issues is the lack of windfall definition, which is not 
being addressed. Select Committee Environment, Transport and Regional Affairs Tenth Report  Annex I, 
dated 30 July 1998 provided a definition, but the NPPF removed it. If this white paper is to be taken 
seriously, then this needs to be reintroduced. 
Unfortunately, there will always be speculative developers who wish to build homes outside the 
allocated sites purely for commercial gain and not for the benefit of the community, though they will 
attempt to badge as so. Generally, there are significant local issues and concerns for speculative 
development, so a full application must be submitted. 
We agree with academics that say that the issue is not there is too much planning, but not enough 
joined up thinking.  
Impact on LPAs and Unitaries. 
The proposed LPA work load will shift from the back end to the front end, with the activities falling on 
the local planning resources that are already in short supply. Where will the additional resources come 
from and where is the money going to come from? Councils are already in debt due to COVID and will 
continue to be under financial strain for years to come. Recently Rt. Hon. Robert Jenrick has admitted 
that LPAs need to be better resourced. Can we assume central government will pay? 
Government ‘s Biodiversity UN Pledge. 
 In September 2020, the Prime Minister pledged at the U.N. further 4% of the land dedicated to stop 
biodiversity decline or species becoming extinct. He said we must turn "words into action" and "agree 
ambitious goals and binding targets”. He continued to say “ We can't afford dither and delay because 
biodiversity loss is happening today, it is happening at a frightening rate. If left unchecked, the 
consequences will be catastrophic for us all. Extinction is forever - so our action must be immediate.” 
In endorsing this Pledge for Nature, the UK have committed not simply to words, but meaningful action 
and accountability. The pledge will be judged now and by future generations on the UK’s willingness to 
meet its aims. Of the ten commitments, three are the most relevant to planning for the future white 
paper are 3,7 and 10: 
3. We will re-double our efforts to end traditional silo thinking and to address the interrelated and 
interdependent challenges of biodiversity loss, …. and climate change in an integrated and coherent 
way, ensuring accountability … and lead by example through  actions  
7. We commit to mainstreaming biodiversity into relevant sectoral and cross-sectoral policies at all 
levels. We will do this by ensuring that across the whole of government, policies, decisions and 
investments account for the value of nature and biodiversity, promote biodiversity conservation, 
restoration, sustainable … 

Page 12

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm199798/cmselect/cmenvtra/495/49502.htm


Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

7 

 

8. We commit to integrating a “One-Health” approach in all relevant policies and decision-making 
processes at all levels that addresses health and environmental sustainability in an integrated fashion. 
Commitment into Actions. 
Commitments 3, 7 and 10 demands that planning reforms must be integrated into protecting the 
environment. Simplistic policies of zoning will not achieve environment protection, but just give 
developers carte blanche permission to build where they like. 
RSPB have highlighted 17 out of the 20 UN biodiversity targets agreed by government have failed to be 
achieved. Why should the public believe these new UN government commitments any more than the 
pledges ten years ago?  
No one would argue that the status quo in our management of the environment is sustainable. To rise to 
this challenge, every single policy maker must step up to the plate and deliver the urgent environmental 
protection English citizens are demanding. 
We would argue that whatever the eventual planning reform, this is not just a golden opportunity to 
pick up the gauntlet, but a commitment to the UN.  Our Prime Minister and MHCLG must lead by 
example and not give excuses that it is someone else’s responsibility. Please demonstrate to the public, 
your courage, commitment and doing the right thing. 
This white paper must take the cue and start “walking the talk”, convert words into actions and embed 
the previous pledges and new commitments into measurable objections for local plans and input into 
planning application decisions. 
Way Forward. 
The white paper so far has shown cursory interest for local people to have a say on protecting wildlife 
corridors, restore biodiversity, stop damage to wild nature and to decrease of air pollution. The 
proposals have to show real interest in the environment and biodiversity in these planning reforms. 
The white paper refers to the environment is a key component of sustainable place making. We propose 
that there are four concurrent sub plans being part of the local plan, namely: economy; infrastructure; 
environment (biodiversity, climate change and green space); and finally housing needs.  
One publicised innovation is the idea to create “wild belt” designated land across England to help nature 
recover. This would be ideal to help the prime minister met his new commitments. 
The Citizen assembly for climate change has been successful. Create an assembly of relevant 
practitioners and kick start a real revolution to dovetail the environment with house building to create 
meaningful planning reforms with community participation.  
6. Do you agree with our proposals for streamlining the development management content of Local 
Plans, and setting out general development management policies nationally? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.] 
No. 
Foreword. 
It is not possible for MHCLG  to set national management policies for LPAs across the country who are so 
varied and diverse. There will be indiscriminate adverse consequences. LPA management polices relate 
directly to the opportunities, constraints and threats of the borough. 
The proposal is for a single statutory sustainability test without unnecessary assessments. Sustainability 
means meeting the needs of the present, without compromising the ability of future generations to 
meet theirs.  How can one achieve this without the relevant assessments? Any meaningful place-making 
in this  proposal will be based on subjective views and not objective facts. Is this what we want?  
We are pleased to see that ten MPs in Kent, including our MP Damian Green and other senior MPs have 
written a joint letter to Rt. Hon. Robert Jenrick MP expressing concerns with the white paper proposals. 
Duty to Cooperate 
The idea of abolishing the Duty to Cooperate with statutory bodies such as English Heritage and the 
Environment Agency is outrageous. This illustrates the view to protect our cultural heritage and the 

Page 13



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

8 

 

environment is only lip service. Many will argue this puts the nail in the coffin for our health and 
wellbeing and for our environment, sustaining biodiversity and mitigating climate change. Where is the 
holistic thinking between MHCLG and DEFRA? Unfortunately, DEFRA was not a member of the task 
force, but why? 
New Environment and Agriculture Bills. 
The Environment Bill aims to improve air and water quality, restore wildlife, and protect the climate. Yet 
there has not been any Parliamentary time for nearly 200 days. It comes over that the environment is an 
inconvenience. The only way to for the government to prove otherwise is to walk the talk. The 
government has said that our natural environment is a vital shared resource and the need to act to 
secure it for generations to come is clear. The new Environment Bill should lead to a green 
transformation that will help our country to thrive. It is a fundamental truth that the environment must 
be a strategic driver in any new planning system, but has been watered down in these proposals. 
There is no mention of the Agriculture Bill which sets direction for food security. This bill sets out 
ambitious plans for a new land management system, where farmers are rewarded with public money for 
public goods, such as improving air and water quality and providing habitats for wildlife. At the same 
time, it will help to boost productivity and maximise the potential of land for producing high quality food 
in a more sustainable way.  
How is this going to be considered against zoning. There is no joined up thinking across departments. 
Market Forces. 
In our view it is market forces that have created the problem and this white paper will shift more power 
to the market. We can expect greater disparity between the haves and have nots, not forgetting the 
huge commercial benefits to landowners and developers. 
It has to be remembered that developers are commercial companies and have to be regulated to ensure 
we get the right houses in the right place in a timely fashion. MHCLG  has been hoodwinked into 
believing deregulating the planning process and handing to market forces is the panacea. Their belief is 
completely misplaced. 
Managing Behaviours. 
The focus should be on managing the behaviour of developers not manipulating the supply and demand 
economic model to the developers benefit. The community has to come first and no tears would be 
shed if the profitability for developers was reduced. If this constrains the big players, then the market 
opens up for the SME developers to gain a foothold, which Rt. Hon. Robert Jenrick  says he is in favour 
of. Secondly, landowners see  plots of land as their retirement pension. If sold at agricultural land prices 
this could be up to £15k per acre, whereas for house building, it could be up to £1m per acre. Is it right 
that the landowner has the fortune to command such high prices for no effort on their part? A rather 
draconian approach, but maybe a cap or some other approach to temper behaviour. 
We also have to recognise there is a dichotomy for existing home owners and first-time buyers. Existing 
home owners want house prices to go up, whereas the first-time buyers want them to go down. This 
opposing issue has to be tackled. 
Development Management Policies. 
The local plan contains specific development management policies for the borough taking into account 
all the relevant attributes and constraints, and should continue to do so.  
What happens to supplementary planning documents and area action plans which are valid and vital 
tools in the toolbox for planners and communities alike to use in planning their local areas? How do 
conservation areas fit in? 
Growth category coming out of a local plan after considering all relevant aspects sounds possible, but 
not with automatic planning permission. Without seeing the sustainable test how do we know how 
robust the allocations are? Where is the test to show the site can be delivered? Delivery includes: is 

Page 14



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

9 

 

there sufficient infrastructure capacity to support the new development, if not will the developer pay, 
again if not the site is not deliverable it should not be an allocated site. 
Without a legal requirement for the community to be consulted on the allocated sites, how will the LPA 
gain sufficient knowledge on the issues and if and how they can be mitigated. 
More Democracy? 
White paper proposal claims that it will add “more democracy at the plan making stage”.  The report 
later says that community scrutiny will be limited to a maximum word count for comments seeking 
changes  during the six-week consultation period for the draft local plan. This white paper is an excellent 
example of how to disenfranchise the community and parish councils. Six weeks for consultation makes 
it  impossible to review documents and provide any meaningful input (no matter how the plans are 
digitalised) – it is Inequitable, impractical, and unworkable. There should be a minimum of 12 weeks for 
stage 3 consultation with the public, parish councils and consultees. To say that the reforms will 
democratise the planning process is completely misleading. 
If MHCLG really wants more democracy, then it should set up a citizen assembly similar to that for 
climate change, plus a forum for local councils and one for LPAs. Let these forums make the 
recommendations. 
7(a). Do you agree with our proposals to replace existing legal and policy tests for Local Plans with a 
consolidated test of “sustainable development”, which would include consideration of environmental 
impact? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
No. 
Without seeing the single statutory “sustainable development” test, how can we comment if it is good 
or bad? If it is good, why has it not been published? This does not instil confidence for the public. 
Without seeing the sustainable test how do we know how robust the allocations are? Without a legal 
requirement for the community to be consulted on the allocated sites, how will the LPA gain sufficient 
knowledge on the issues and if and how they can be mitigated. 
As Future Homes Standard is setting guidelines for meeting climate change goals, we cannot see why 
the LPA should play a role in setting energy efficiency standards for new builds. Have we misread? 
7(b). How could strategic, cross-boundary issues be best planned for in the absence of a formal Duty to 
Cooperate? 
Insufficient information to comment. 
8(a). Do you agree that a standard method for establishing housing requirements (that takes into 
account constraints) should be introduced? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Yes. 
Foreword. 
We agree there should be a uniform approach to calculating housing reequipments, but not the method 
now proposed by MHCLG. It is concerning that a lot of academic publications state the new 
methodology is flawed. One of the issues raised is affordability.  
The algorithm as it stands, is a weapon of “Mass Destruction” in uncontrolled building on greenfield 
sites. Homes should be driven by local needs based on economic activity, infrastructure, the 
environment and true demand. 
Housing Needs. 
A simplified formula for assessing housing need must focus on the places of existing and potential 
economic growth, otherwise unemployment will be created for economically active adults, who cannot 
afford a car, when public transport is so bad. Additionally, to avoid contagious viruses. 
What are the plans for the development of social housing that is needed for the community? This 
appears to be an important housing need overlooked. 
Where is the test if the site can be delivered? MHCLG are focusing on only one part of the equation. 
Delivery includes: is there sufficient infrastructure capacity to support the new development, if not, will 

Page 15



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

10 

 

the developer pay. If not, the site is not deliverable and should not be an allocated site. Renewal areas 
“suitable for development” are where the problems will occur as they tend not to have the relevant 
infrastructure nor are they near pockets of employment.  
Right Places. 
Unfortunately, the white paper has glossed over the steps HOW to achieve place making in practical 
terms. 
It is quoted that “…. the planning system needs to be fit for purpose. It must make land available in the 
right places and for the right form of development”. The problem is the interpretation of “right places”, 
which the current system in our view does quite well, despite being imperfect.  
“Right place” as we all know has to take into account existing infrastructure to support housing and if 
insufficient capacity, can be upgraded in an acceptable timescale and cost. In addition, there is no point 
building houses where they are not close to centres of employment and do not have sustainable 
transport. Colocation to jobs is the ideal scenario.  
We propose that there are four concurrent sub plans being part of the local plan. To identify correctly 
the right places. These four plans would be: economy; infrastructure; environment / green space; and 
finally housing needs. These four sub plans would then create a place-making local plan. We cannot see 
how we will achieve an acceptable local plan without going through those steps, otherwise we will build 
in the WRONG PLACES. 
Supply Side. 
Developers intentionally release houses (the supply side) at a rate to inflate prices, or just land bank 
until there is a more favourable demand. Until MHCLG puts conditions in place around this issue, the 
problem will continue. There is no point hitting and criticising the LPAs with a stick when they have no 
control. Affordability is also driven by hungry landowners who want to maximise the land price – this in 
turn pushes up the house prices. House price inflation will continue until there is a serious effort to 
tackle the landowner and developer. There is no indication this issue is recognised in the whitepaper 
proposal. Therefore, any improvement in delivery will be minimal at best. 
One idea that has been floated before, is to charge council tax on developers after a set period on the 
approved houses that have not been built and sold, thereby stopping land hoarding. This should deliver 
houses more quickly, stabilise price inflation and homes thereby become more affordable. 
8(b). Do you agree that affordability and the extent of existing urban areas are appropriate indicators of 
the quantity of development to be accommodated? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.] 
No. See answer to question 9(a) 
9(a). Do you agree that there should be automatic outline permission for areas for substantial 
development (Growth areas) with faster routes for detailed consent? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please 
provide supporting statement.]  
No. 
Preface. 
We do not agree with the proposal for automatic outline permission.  
Giving automatic outline planning permission at the local plan stage will add a significant premium to 
the land value for landowners. This will no doubt push house prices up further which is against the ethos 
of MHCLG’s aspiration. How is it going to improve housing affordability? How will it stop identikit houses 
being built which happens today? One academic has stated that zoning will introduce “a decade of 
disruption, a lack of clarity and uncertainty”. They continue to say how do you allow for innovation 
or  differentiation? This is especially important in the context of how Covid-19 highlighted weaknesses in 
how we organise towns and cities. We tend to agree. 
How is delivering net-zero carbon going to be achieved? Just cliches in the white paper. 

Page 16



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

11 

 

How is sustainable transport going to be achieved? Without it how will economically active adults get to 
work? 
Pre- Applications. 
What happens with pre-applications.? It appears they have been put on the scrapheap. They are 
essential for complicated proposals where you really need a steer from a case officer or where 
the application is sensitive. The aim is to improve the quality of the application in relation to its 
environment and available infrastructure. This invaluable process has been thrown out of the window 
for no good reason and to the detriment for the wellbeing of the community. It aids developers and 
ensures future development has taken into account many factors before a formal application is 
submitted saving time and energy on all parties. 
Where is the test if land would be better suited for farming to provide food with a growing population 
rather than a target to build homes? Giving farmers outline permissions will encourage them to earn a 
quick buck rather than feed the country. 
Zoning. 
There is very little detail available on how a three-category zoning system would be allocated in practice. 
It is just platitudes with minimal joined up thinking.  
With the allocation of sites, considerable information will not be known, as potentially few developers 
have an agreed partnership with the landowner. It is not the role of the LPA to be the pseudo developer 
coming up with masterplans. LPAs cannot and should not be gamekeeper and poacher. 
With this in mind, outline permission could only cover: 

a) Topography 
b) The existing use. 
c) The uses proposed for the development and any distinct development zones 
d) The amount of development proposed for each use 
e) Vernacular style based on immediate setting of local community and proximately to open 

countryside 
f) Density with minimum and maximum height, width and length of proposed buildings 
g) Areas in which access points to the site could be located 
h) Ownership certificates 
i) Confirmation from utilities that there is sufficient capacity for electricity, gas, water, sewage, 

drainage, broadband, etc 
How is the LPA going to conduct the massive exercise of an environmental impact assessment on top of 
these activities for every parcel of land considered for allocation? A mammoth task and impossible 
within the timescale the white paper is suggesting.  
The reserve matters would have to be beefed up considerably to consider: 

a) Description of proposed works 
b) Masterplan 
c) Number of dwellings and footprint of non-residential development 
d) Affordable homes 
e) Design and access statement 
f) Materials and character 
g) Vehicle parking 
h) Pedestrian and vehicular access, roads and right of way 
i) Direct and any cumulative impact (traffic, biodiversity, services, etc) 
j) Travel plan compliance with climate change policies 
k) Waste storage and collection 
l) Foul sewage 

Page 17

https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Topography
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Development
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Development
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Development
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Height
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Building
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Area
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Access
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Points
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Site
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Ownership_certificate
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Works
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Dwelling
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Residential_development
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Design_and_access_statements
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Materials
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Parking
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Access
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Road
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Rights_of_way
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Waste
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Storage
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Sewage


Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

12 

 

m) Biodiversity, geological, trees and hedges conservation and compliance with climate change 
policies 

n) Boundaries and buffers for wildlife 
o) Effluent 
p) Infrastructure build and connection 
q) Investment in local highway infrastructure, flood prevention and environmental mitigation  
r) Public open and green spaces 
s) Assessment of flood risk, mitigation for surface water, SUDS and water features 
t) Hazardous substances 
u) S106 or equivalent 
v) Construction plan 
w) Detailed level compliance with planning policy (National Planning Policy Framework) 

This list is not complete and should only be considered as illustrative. 
The bottom line is the bulk of the planning decision making considerations are no longer up front, but 
now in reserve matters which will take longer for consultation with parishes and the community. 
9(b). Do you agree with our proposals above for the consent arrangements for Renewal and Protected 
areas? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
No. 
Too simplistic approach and open to legal challenges by developers. The winners will be the legal 
profession. 
9(c). Do you think there is a case for allowing new settlements to be brought forward under the 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects regime? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.] 
No. 
An outline planning permission should be submitted for each application. For large schemes pre 
application process should still be made available. 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects were designed to solve other problems and not for new 
settlements. 
10. Do you agree with our proposals to make decision-making faster and more certain? [Yes / No / Not 
sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
No. 
We do not agree with your proposals in making decision making faster and more certain. To increase 
speed of process will mean reduction of public participation. This in term means unable to scrutinise 
plans and applications where more often than not they are defective. 
The real problem is not understood. It has nothing to do with digitisation. It is standardisation of 
information that will help. Developers like padding out applications so the reader gives up and cannot 
see the wood from the trees. Developers like to present THEIR facts and NOT the holistic facts that could 
go against them. 
Experience shows when the decision-making timeline is exceeded is when the developer drip feeds 
additional documents in an attempt to argue against facts presented by consultees. So automatic refund 
of fees is irrelevant. The boot should be put on the other foot. When developers drip feed additional 
documents, they must pay an additional fee, as this will cause an extra case load on the planning officer 
and extra time needed to be spent by parish councillors. 
As a parish (town) council, we meet monthly and planning committees must have sufficient time to 
review and determine applications.  
We cannot see how facilities and infrastructure that the community value, such as schools, hospitals and 
GP surgeries, are delivered quickly through the planning system. It takes years.  

Page 18

https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Biodiversity
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Trees
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Hedge
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Conservation
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Boundary
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Trade
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Infrastructure
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Public_open_space
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Flood_risk
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Hazardous_substances
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Compliance
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Planning_policy
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/National_planning_policy_framework


Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

13 

 

The local planning system must focus on infrastructure for the borough and be published with the local 
plan, with committed funding, not at the application stage when it is too late. 
11. Do you agree with our proposals for accessible, web-based Local Plans? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please 
provide supporting statement.]  
Yes. 
In principle, however, the consultation paper says support local authorities to radically rethink how they 
document their Local Plans. Are we saying that each local authority must come up with its own solution? 
This indicates MHCLG  has no idea how to achieve. A recipe for a car crash.  Central government does 
not have a good track record when it comes to IT projects. They tend to end in disaster with an 
overspend and cancellation. 
Regardless of whoever develops the wonder web-based software, who is going to pay? Who is going to 
define the requirements? We could end up with a different system for each LPA in the country – not a 
formula for standardisation. 
12. Do you agree with our proposals for a 30-month statutory timescale for the production of Local 
Plans? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
No.  
A 30-month statutory timescale is unrealistic and will cut corners to meet an artificial deadline leads to 
poor decisions and bad outcomes. The easiest and cheapest way, can really be achieved by omitting 
to do something important or ignoring best practice. This is a very high-risk approach and will 
compromise the desired result with dire consequences. 
With such a short timescale, it will speed up “garbage in” and “garbage out”. In other words, not fit for 
purpose. The proposal is an excellent example of how to disenfranchise the community and parish 
councils. Six weeks for consultation is impossible to review documents and provide any meaningful input 
(no matter how the plans are digitalised). There should be a minimum of 12 weeks for stage 3 
consultation with the public, parish councils and consultees.  
MHCLG needs to go back to the drawing board and ask planners from a variety of local councils  what is 
achievable to maintain and improve democracy in obtaining meaningful community input.  
13(a). Do you agree that Neighbourhood Plans should be retained in the reformed planning system? 
[Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Yes 
It  comes over that the task force did not have neighbourhood planning in mind when they wrote it and 
may even be seen as an inconvenience. 
Neighbourhood plans are probably the last bastion of localism to allow any meaningful community 
input. 
These plans are extremely valuable, should not be diluted and should be better financed by 
government. 
13(b). How can the neighbourhood planning process be developed to meet our objectives, such as in the 
use of digital tools and reflecting community preferences about design? 
Prove digitisation with local plans first. Once bedded in, then consider neighbourhood plans. Acting too 
quickly without due diligence, focus, and attention to detail will result in avoidable mistakes and thus 
require even more time to complete the neighbourhood plan satisfactorily. 
14. Do you agree there should be a stronger emphasis on the build out of developments? And if so, what 
further measures would you support? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
No. 
Salami slicing sites puts sustainability at risk. Who becomes responsible for the holistic mitigation of the 
whole site? Insufficient attention has gone into this. Comes over as an afterthought, without considering 
the consequences. 

Page 19



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

14 

 

15. What do you think about the design of new development that has happened recently in your area? 
[Not sure or indifferent / Beautiful and/or well-designed / Ugly and/ or poorly-designed / There has not 
been any / Other – please specify]  
Other. 
Some proposals by developers in our town have been awful, they have only become acceptable due to 
the hard work of the parish council fighting for an acceptable vernacular. Builders want to keep cost 
down by using easy to build design and vernacular. Quality design is sacrificed. 
As mentioned earlier, there must be four sub plans (economy; infrastructure; environment / green 
space and finally housing needs) as part of the place-making plan.  
There is insufficient attention by developers on Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design. This 
must be made compulsory. 
16. Sustainability is at the heart of our proposals. What is your priority for sustainability in your area? 
[Less reliance on cars / More green and open spaces / Energy efficiency of new buildings / More trees / 
Other – please specify] 
Other. 
Planting more trees, though is important for climate change it is just tinkering around the edges. The 
NPPF has good polices around sustainability, but is pushed into a corner and side-lined by developers. 
Developers pay for expensive consultants to prove black is white. One way to help is to have a local 
approved list of sustainability consultants around water, ecology, etc with a brief to report holistic facts 
and not a restricted brief by developers. This should be set up by the LPA to gain confidence for all 
concerned. Unfortunately, this will never happen as the developers will fight tooth and nail with the 
government to stop this. 
There must be a responsibility by the consultants to show the findings of the real world and not the 
world the developer wishes people to see.  
On specifics, it is not possible to reduce reliance on the car in our town as economically active adults 
need to get to work from a market town to places of employment. Transport is wholly unsustainable 
and it is not possible to make it so without massive subsidies from central government. 
The more that is built the worse the traffic becomes, there will be less parking as there are no spaces to 
allocate more, which in turn will eventually drive tourism away so ending up with an unsustainable 
economy. Kills the goose that lays the golden egg. The countryside is not just an unnecessary piece of 
land, but often a productive economy for food production, tourism and other services.  
Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act for habitats designations must be 
strictly imposed.  
17. Do you agree with our proposals for improving the production and use of design guides and codes? 
[Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Yes 
The concept is correct, but must be flexible to suit the local vernacular and community input for the 
proposed development. 
A major concern is that design codes have focused on insulation for so long, it has forgotten how to 
keep homes cool in the summer months - this will get worse with climate change. 
Do all homes now have to have air conditioning installed as standard, or will homes be designed better? 
This is major omission which must be addressed with urgency. 
Delivering new homes by 2050 in 30 years’ time is contemptable. This is another subject like the 
environment standards that are an inconvenience to consider with appropriate rules. 
MHCLG damming report states: “quality standard of homes delivered through change of use permitted 
development rights has led to worse quality homes”. 
Town and Country Planning Association have highlighted that permitted development: 

Page 20



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

15 

 

a) Has made real place-making impossible in many places by effectively removing acres of land in key 
areas from councils’ influence, preventing them from securing and co-ordinating development in 
sustainable, safe places. At the same time the government is critical of the planning system for the 
design quality of the places it produces. 

b) Has deprived councils of funding for the infrastructure – green space, community facilities, 
healthcare facilities, roads, and affordable housing – that is essential to new and existing 
communities’ wellbeing because councils are unable to collect Section 106 payments on 
developments delivered through this route. 

c) Threatens local jobs and businesses because councils are unable to stop employment land in their 
areas being converted to housing. This potentially forces local people into unsustainable 
communities 

d) Has undermined local democracy and left communities unable to influence their local environment 
as it changes over time. 

This is a recognised train wreck to the detriment of the community. How is the planning white paper and 
design guides going to rectify this and to stop in the future? Or will it be allowed to continue for 
perpetuity for the benefit of the owner and developer?  
18. Do you agree that we should establish a new body to support design coding and building better 
places, and that each authority should have a chief officer for design and place-making? [Yes / No / Not 
sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
To support design codes – yes. But LPAs and neighbourhood plans are the arbitrators for what is 
appropriate for their borough and parish.  
As far as we are aware, our LPA already has a head of place making. 

19. Do you agree with our proposal to consider how design might be given greater emphasis in 

the strategic objectives for Homes England? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 

statement.]  
Not sure. 
We have never heard of any results from Homes England. What have they achieved to the benefit of the 
community within a LPA or parish? 
20. Do you agree with our proposals for implementing a fast-track for beauty? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.]  
Not sure. 
The focus should be the new vernacular blending in with the existing vernacular. Should be part of the 
local design codes. 
21. When new development happens in your area, what is your priority for what comes with it? [More 
affordable housing / More or better infrastructure (such as transport, schools, health provision) / Design 
of new buildings / More shops and/or employment space / Green space / Don’t know / Other – please 
specify] 
Other  
When drawing up the local plan for allocated sites, this should have all been addressed and the sums 
required from developers worked out. Our LPA has as a standard 40% affordable homes which is 
supported by the community. 
All infrastructure in particular utility service capacity are considered at the same time as allocated sites 
are assessed. 
It is only for speculative builds that the issue should arise. In this instance as a minimum infrastructure 
and an allocation of affordable housing that must be paid for. 
With regard to the critical significance of green spaces and design codes, these are covered by both the 
Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan. However, in future iterations more rigger needs to be placed. 

Page 21



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

16 

 

Finally, development should be close to areas of employment, if not then sustainable public transport 
that is reliable, frequent and affordable is available. 
22(a). Should the Government replace the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 planning 
obligations with a new consolidated Infrastructure Levy, which is charged as a Responded proportion of 
development value above a set threshold? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Not sure. 
We believe for our LPA, S106 works well, so would be loathed to replace with an unproven concept. 
An unproven “one size fits all” Infrastructure Levy rates set nationally at a single rate would not work. It 
must be set at local level. 
To allow local authorities to borrow against the Infrastructure Levy is a slippery slope to financial 
disaster. LPAs have little authority to raise money from the community. There is no local tax regime to 
pay interest. 
22(b). Should the Infrastructure Levy rates be set nationally at a single rate, set nationally at an area-
specific rate, or set locally? [Nationally at a single rate / Nationally at an area-specific rate / Locally] 
Locally. 
An unproven one size fits all would not work. A local level rates ensures we get the right result. 
 22(c). Should the Infrastructure Levy aim to capture the same amount of value overall, or more value, 
to support greater investment in infrastructure, affordable housing and local communities? [Same 
amount overall / More value / Less value / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Not sure. 
Each locality has different needs, so it is not possible to answer this question. 
22(d). Should we allow local authorities to borrow against the Infrastructure Levy, to support 
infrastructure delivery in their area? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
No.  
A slippery slope to financial disaster. LPAs have little authority to raise money from the community. 
There is no local tax regime to pay interest. 
23. Do you agree that the scope of the reformed Infrastructure Levy should capture changes of use 
through permitted development rights? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Not sure.  
MHCLG is tinkering with permitted rights which in our view is dangerous as the recent MHCLG damming 
report shows. In its current form, there will need to be included in some manner within the 
infrastructure levy?  
24(a). Do you agree that we should aim to secure at least the same amount of affordable housing under 
the Infrastructure Levy, and as much on-site affordable provision, as at present? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.]  
Yes 
What are the plans for the development of social housing that are needed for the community? 
24(b). Should affordable housing be secured as in-kind payment towards the Infrastructure Levy, or as a 
‘right to purchase’ at discounted rates for local authorities? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide 
supporting statement.]  
Not sure. 
Money collected via levies, S106 or other mechanisms should be spent on what is needed to support the 
additional houses. Affordable housing should continue to be provided by the developer as per present 
arrangements. 
24(c). If an in-kind delivery approach is taken, should we mitigate against local authority overpayment 
risk? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Yes. 
LPAs should not be burdened with risk. 

Page 22



Planning for the Future – Whitepaper August 2020 Consultation 

17 

 

24(d). If an in-kind delivery approach is taken, are there additional steps that would need to be taken to 
support affordable housing quality? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Not sure. 
25. Should local authorities have fewer restrictions over how they spend the Infrastructure Levy? [Yes / 
No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]  
Yes. Money collected should be spent on what is needed to support the additional houses. 
25(a). If yes, should an affordable housing ‘ring-fence’ be developed? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please 
provide supporting statement.] 
Yes 
 

Page 23



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 1 of 11 

 

Preface 
 

The following is our opinion of the proposed new planning system. Views are given in good faith based 

on our experience and understanding. 

 

We all know that planning and application decision making is a complex subject. Particularly with each 

LPA having different opportunities, issues, concerns and constraints. Today, the local plan contains 

specific development management policies for the LPA taking into account all the relevant attributes 

and constraints, and should continue to do so. It is essential for local authorities to be allowed the 

flexibility to set development management policies. This is the correct approach and one that the 

community can have faith in, if it is seen to be even-handed, whilst providing housing that is required. 

 

The current planning system embraces democracy by allowing LPAs and parish councils, plus the local 

community to forensically examine and challenge planning applications submitted by developers. This 

ensures we as a community, get the best possible outcome for the right type of developments, built in 

the right place, in the right numbers.  The positive contribution the community and parish councils can 

make has to be recognised. To ignore them is at MHCLG’s peril. “Planning for the Future” must not 

move to a totalitarianism approach, but a participative approach to strengthen local decision-making, 

through building a strong alliance of local authorities and communities. 

 

In our view it is not possible to apply centralised control and rules without undesirable consequences. 

It will disenfranchise, marginalise, supress, and remove localism decision making from the LPAs, 

parishes and local communities. It will move significantly more power to MHCLG and developers with 

the aim to deregulate and let market forces have a much greater say where houses are built. The old 

proverb of “act in haste and repent at leisure” is so pertinent in this situation. Unfortunately, the 

country’s whole community will be collectively repenting for generations if this white paper goes 

through unchanged. 

 

MHCLG is criticising local authorities for not building enough homes, when in fact there are over one 

million homes with planning permission that are not being delivered by developers. This number 

equates to over three years of housing needs, so there should be no shortage of availability. MHCLG is 

placing the blame of slow delivery at the wrong door, when in fact they should be introducing 

regulations to impose on developers to build more quickly. 

 

The white paper proposals are radical, but has missed the mark by not understanding and diagnosing 

the real problem. It has glossed over the steps HOW to achieve place making in practical terms. It fails 

to show any evidence that their assumptions are correct. In our opinion, they are unsound, reckless and 

unwarranted. It would not solve housing needs through dramatically reducing existing planning controls 

and scrutiny, but would allow an explosion of uncontrolled building on our valuable countryside. 

 

The headline statement is that over the last 10 years, the build out rate is between 30% to 40% less than 

the permissions granted1. It is not more permissions that are required, but levers to coerce developers 

to build. MHCLG have not understood the real problem and are recommending the wrong solution. 

 

The proposed algorithm as it stands, is a weapon of "Mass Destruction" of unprecedent scale. 

 

We all agree that all LPAs should have a local plan in place. However, the new process squeezes out 

the local community who have the local knowledge of their specific parish. This will result in zero 

confidence by the community in MHCLG, developers, the local plan and future applications. To create 

more resilience through these proposals is not going to be achieved, unless it means building regardless 

of the colossal adverse consequences.  

 

Finally, the probing inquiry questions to be answered are very open ended and therefore we have 

attempted to respond under a number of topics. 

 
1 https://www.local.gov.uk/housing-backlog-more-million-homes-planning-permission-not-yet-built 

Page 24



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 2 of 11 

 

Is the current planning system working as it should do?  

 

Raynsford Review of Planning in England 

 

It is highly recommended that the committee reads the Raynsford Review of Planning in England2 

published in November 2018. Though the committee might not agree with all the conclusions, it is a 

very thorough analysis of identifying and understanding the problem, together with the associated 

symptoms experienced today and how the planning system can move forward. 

 

Its approach is systematic, relevant, analytical and professional. It is very concerning that not one 

mention was made in the MHCLG white paper “planning for the future”.  

 

2011 Localism Act 

 

The Town and Country Planning Act 1947 formed the basis for much of today’s planning system for 

large scale planning and development of towns and cities. Quite rightly the 2011 Localism Act 

overhauled the 1947 system by signalling the formal abolition of regional plans and reintroduced the 

Local Plan format and the creation of Neighbourhood Plans as part of the development framework. Its 

aim to build homes in the right place of the right type, at the right time to support growing local 

economies, with the corresponding infrastructure; and protection for the environment. 

 

This reform was well received and has formed the basis for identification of housing needs; site 

allocations; and the nurturing of democracy through public engagement of local plans, neighbourhood 

plans and application decision making. Though the NPPF is not perfect, it has formed a good basis for 

directing construction. Today the NPPF does not place sufficient emphasis on section 41 habitats for 

protection. 

 

The Local Plan for our LPA has been successful and is trusted by the community at large. Throughout 

the LPA has ensured democracy during the consultation period and scrutinising individual applications. 

 

Unfortunately, for the country as a whole, we are concerned that the system could be gamed by some 

developers to bend local plans and applications to their benefit and not necessary to the benefit of the 

community. However, there are considerably more pluses than minuses within the current system. 

 

PiPs 

 

With the introduction of PiPs, additional complexity and unintended consequences have been created. 

The planning system has become fragmented, bewildering and confusing. PiPs were introduced via 

secondary legalisation without due scrutiny by both houses of parliament and have introduced 

discordant or disparate elements into the planning regime and will drive through rogue consequences 

that will be regretted for decades to come. It has fragmented the shaping of local and national planning, 

with little co-ordination between the two, resulting with undesired outcomes.  

 

We now have a situation where permitted development rights allow changes to a building’s use without 

the need to seek planning permission. This has resulted in tiny, poor, substandard homes without 

consideration of required infrastructure, parking and open space needs. In some instances, the result is 

development which has harmful implications for people’s health and wellbeing. The evidence of 

inferior quality of homes produced through this route has now emerged through MHCLG’s own report. 

 

Town and Country Planning Association have highlighted that permitted development: 

 

a) Has made real place-making impossible in many places by effectively removing acres of land in 

key areas from councils’ influence, preventing them from securing and co-ordinating development 

 
2 https://www.cpreherefordshire.org.uk/assets/Documents/Reports-and-
Leaflets/83aa59a158/TCPA_Raynsford_Full_Report_20181120_HIGH_RES.pdf 

Page 25



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 3 of 11 

 

in sustainable, safe places. At the same time the government is critical of the planning system for 

the design quality of the places it produces. 

b) Has deprived councils of funding for the infrastructure – green space, community facilities, 

healthcare facilities, roads, and affordable housing – that is essential to new and existing 

communities’ wellbeing because councils are unable to collect Section 106 payments on 

developments delivered through this route. 

c) Threatens local jobs and businesses because councils are unable to stop employment land in their 

areas being converted to housing. This potentially forces local people into unsustainable 

communities 

d) Has undermined local democracy and left communities unable to influence their local environment 

as it changes over time. 

 

This is a recognised train wreck to the detriment of the community. How are the planning white paper 

and design guides going to rectify this and stop it in the future? Or will it be allowed to continue for 

perpetuity to the potential benefit of the landowner and developer?  

 

Whether housing delivery is through PiPs or formal applications, there has to be a universal housing 

standard for ALL developments, that must be meet. There has to be a level playing field for fees and 

housing standards, otherwise developers will have the ability to game to the weaker rules. 

 

Public Trust 

 

The MHCLG “Planning for the Future” white paper refers to the Grosvenor Britain & Ireland Trust in 

Housing Development report3. It quotes seven per cent of the community trust their local council, but 

fails to say only 2 per cent trust developers. In addition, it does not mention the key recommendations: 

 

a) Profits / value package: Show that developers deliver much more than just profit, that they consider 

local needs and deliver long term value to the community 

b) Accountability: Show that there are effective mechanisms to hold developers (and the local council) 

to account on their promises 

c) Public influence: Give the public meaningful input on development decisions, involving them early 

with limited barriers to entry and actual influence on decisions that matter 

 

These are vitally important to instil trust with the public and preserve democracy. As MHCLG thinks 

this document is important, they must adopt the simple but essential proposals that will make all the 

difference. 

 

Conclusion 

 

The planning system is very complex by nature. To simplify it and remove checks and balances, will 

be to the detrimental to house building where the local economy demands. Democracy, the 

environment, and climate change will all suffer. 

 

However, that does not mean the system cannot be improved and still retain the positive aspects of the 

current planning process.  

 

There has been TOO much silo thinking in modifying the planning process and is no longer tenable in 

our global and complex world. It has to be integrated with our aspirations for managing climate change, 

the environment, biodiversity, food security and scarcity of water. In September 2020, the Prime 

Minister pledged at the U.N. further 4% of the land dedicated to stop biodiversity decline or species 

becoming extinct. He said we must turn "words into action" and "agree ambitious goals and binding 

targets”. He continued to say “ We can't afford dither and delay because biodiversity loss is happening 

today, it is happening at a frightening rate. If left unchecked, the consequences will be catastrophic for 

us all. Extinction is forever - so our action must be immediate.” 

 
3 https://www.grosvenor.com/Grosvenor/files/a2/a222517e-e270-4a5c-ab9f-7a7b4d99b1f3.pdf 

Page 26



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 4 of 11 

 

 

In endorsing this Pledge for Nature, the UK have committed not simply to words, but meaningful action 

and accountability. The pledge will be judged now and by future generations on the UK’s willingness 

to meet its aims. The actions must be reflected in any new proposal. 

 

What changes might need to be made? 

 

Market Forces 

 

In our view it is market forces that have created the problem and this white paper will shift more power 

to the market. We can expect greater disparity between the haves and have nots, not forgetting the huge 

commercial and financial benefits to landowners and developers. 

 

It has to be remembered that developers are commercial companies and have to be regulated to ensure 

we get the right houses in the right place in a timely fashion.  

 

We recognise and appreciate that our LPA is working hard with developers to ensure that the housing 

needs for the borough are met over the next ten years, but they do not have the levers to force developers 

to deliver the required homes at the right time, rather than land banking. The proposed white paper 

gives more power to the developers and takes away from the LPAs, parishes and the community. The 

removal of democracy and introduction of a free market is a recipe for disaster. 

 

In our opinion, some landowners see plots of land as their retirement pension. If sold at agricultural 

land prices this could be up to £15k per acre, whereas for house building, it could be up to £1m per acre. 

Is it right that the landowner has the good fortune to command such high prices for no effort on their 

part? A key question is, how can the casino sums of money for land be brought down to an acceptable 

level, or does MHCLG wish market forces continue to decide? 

 

Desired Outcomes 

 

The final planning system should not be designed for the convenience for MHCLG, the interests of the 

private sector, or to be dominated by any particular vested interest.  

 

It must strike a balance in which the housing needs of our communities are met in the most sustainable 

way, and in which all parts of the community have a real voice in the decision-making process. Though 

hard to achieve, it must be as far as possible be efficient and effective for democracy, the planning 

officers, landowners and developers, where the community has trust in the process and outcome.  

 

The planning system should: 

 

a) Meet the economic needs of the locality, by providing the required homes, public transportation 

and surroundings for the young, economically active and retirees. 

b) Wherever possible collocate houses and jobs. 

c) Be visionary by taking into account new standards to meet today’s and future challenges of climate 

change; the protection of the environment; and provide sustainable services and utilities. 

d) Provide creative high-quality architecture for people to live, work and play, that is commensurate 

to the local vernacular. 

 

Way Forward. 

 

The white paper so far has shown cursory interest for local people to have a say where they need homes, 

where infrastructure is required, protect wildlife corridors, restore biodiversity, stop damage to nature 

and to decrease air pollution. The proposals have to show real interest in the environment and 

biodiversity in these planning reforms. Housing and the environment for healthy living can and must 

coexist. 

 

Page 27



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 5 of 11 

 

The white paper refers to the environment as a key component of sustainable place making. We propose 

that there are four concurrent sub plans being part of the local plan for place making, namely: economic 

needs; housing needs; infrastructure needs; and environment (biodiversity, climate change and green 

space) protection.  

 

One publicised innovation is the idea to create “wild belt” designated land across England to help nature 

recover. This would be ideal to help the prime minister met his new UN commitments. 

 

The Citizen assembly for climate change has been successful. Create an assembly of relevant 

practitioners and kick start a real revolution to dovetail the environment with house building to create 

meaningful planning reforms with community participation.  

 

The white paper has missed the mark by not understanding the real problem and glossed over the steps 

HOW to achieve place making in practical terms. The Raynsford Review of Planning in England is an 

excellent example of conducting an authoritative review with clear terms of reference, relevant 

representatives, unbiased assessment of the real problem and producing meaningful conclusions and 

recommendations. 

 

MHCLG should start again and work with representatives of the planning process and the community 

instead of what appears to be working against them. The answer has to be plan led and not ideology 

led, nor left to market forces. 

 

Are the government’s proposals the right approach? 

 

No. 

 

Vision and Problem Statement 

 

The white paper says it wishes to rediscover the original mission, but fails to state what the vision going 

forward should be. The stated wish list is a list of intentions, rather than a proper achievable vision with 

measurable objectives.  

 

Where is the problem statement? The white paper should articulate the area of concern and the condition 

to be improved upon, that points to the need for meaningful understanding, deliberate investigation and 

documentation of reliable evidence. There is a difference between a perceived problem and the actual 

problem. Where is the evidence that shows MHCLG have correctly identified and understood the real 

problem?  

 

Symptoms associated with the problem tend to be confusing when trying to identify the real problem.  

They are often considered before the real problem is understood, especially when there is a specific 

government agenda. MHCLG and the task force have not understood the barriers to delivering enough 

homes, as they have not undertaken an unbiased and industry standard methodical assessment of the 

problem and symptoms. It appears that MHCLG have avoided getting relevant practitioners on board.  

 

It is extremely important to avoid jumping to solutions until a profound understanding of the current 

state is achieved. Establishing root cause cannot be over stated. Sadly, in our opinion, the problem 

identification process is seriously defective and thus came up with the wrong solution. The tenor of the 

paper comes over as, here is the solution, now let us find the problem it might solve. 

 

At the end of the day, the proposals are not deliverable.   No one has considered the practicality of how 

the value chain of the processes need to be redrawn due to the wrong composition of the task force, 

with missing practitioners of relevant disciplines.  

 

  

Page 28



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 6 of 11 

 

MHCLG Task Force Composition. 

 

Examining the MHCLG website, it appears that the task force was made up with from the legal 

profession; developers; real estate; economist; academician for urbanism; and a scientific adviser.  

 

a) Where are the planning practitioners?  

b) Where are the masterplan and a large-scale planning designers (like Sir Terry Farrell)?  

c) Where is climate change representative?  

d) Where is the DEFRA representative?  

e) Where is the infrastructure construction representative?  

f) Where is the sustainability representative?  

g) Where is the local council representative?  

h) Where is the community representative, like the citizen assembly for climate change?   

i) Where is the holistic thinking? There is no joined up thinking between departments and draft bills 

in front of parliament.  

 

In other words, no one from the planning process “coal face” who understands the value chain and could 

separate the perceived problem from the real problem for housing delivery. Yet MHCLG have put 

forward proposals that have little bearing on the real challenges we face, but give greater power to rules-

based systems and developers for no justification. The wrong solution to the wrong question. 

 

Flawed Proposals. 

 

The proposed “one size fits all” does not work – how can it? In one breath they say the top-down 

regional strategies and unelected regional planning bodies have been abolished which will empower 

communities. Now the white paper wants to introduce a central set of policies that will disenfranchise, 

supress, and remove localism decision making. 

 

When there is a discussion over simplification of rules, we all know that means watered down the rules 

with minimal discovery opportunities of the facts. Without the facts, wrong decisions will be made, 

particularly in the complex world of planning. We disagree that reliance no longer needs to be placed 

on local plan policies. It is these policies that reflect the ability to provide sustainable infrastructure, the 

need for protecting the environment and the character of the borough to ensure the right houses are built 

in the rights places at the right time. 

 

MHCLG proposals will marginalise local decision making, and substantially reduce consultation away 

from councils and our community for deciding where developments should take place and prevent 

analysing the sustainability of applications.  

 

The proposals would not solve housing needs through dramatically reducing existing planning controls 

and scrutiny. They would allow an explosion of uncontrolled building on our valuable countryside, as 

there would be insufficient checks and balances for sustainability; for building homes in the right places; 

and ensuring minimal impact on the environment and habitat designations. 

 

It must not be forgotten that  councils have little or no control over the speed of approved housing 

delivery, nor to our knowledge any sanctions to place on the developer if they sit on the land. Until this 

is seriously solved by MHCLG , the country will not move any faster in delivery. 

 

All allocated sites (zones) must undergo critical examination. Without it, how do we successfully 

measure delivery whilst supporting new long-term jobs and protecting biodiversity, plus building the 

correct infrastructure and services. 

 

New rules would not require sites up to 50 houses to provide affordable homes by developers. This is a 

serious step backwards, as this would prevent up to 20 affordable houses being built per site. 

 

  

Page 29



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 7 of 11 

 

Single Statutory Sustainability Test 

 

The MHCLG proposal is for a single statutory sustainability test without unnecessary assessments. 

Sustainability means meeting the needs of the present, without compromising the ability of future 

generations to meet theirs.  How can one achieve this without the relevant assessments? Any meaningful 

place-making in this  proposal will be based on subjective views and not objective facts. A fatal flaw. 

 

Impact on LPAs and Unitaries. 

 

The proposed LPA work load will shift from the back end to the front end, with the activities falling on 

the local planning resources that are already in short supply. Where will the additional resources come 

from and where is the money going to come from? Councils are already in debt due to COVID and will 

continue to be under financial strain for years to come. Recently Rt. Hon. Robert Jenrick has admitted 

that LPAs need to be better resourced. Can we assume central government will pay? 

 

Removing Community Involvement. 

 

Very worryingly, there is no single initiative  to improve democracy and scrutiny. Only to impose from 

the centre and let market forces rule. To say the community will be able to trust the planning system 

again is so misleading. The man in the street will not buy this argument. 

 

The positive contribution the community and parish councils can make has to be recognised. To ignore 

them is at MHCLG’s peril. “Planning for the Future” must not move to a totalitarianism approach, but 

a participative approach to strengthen local decision-making through building a strong alliance of local 

authorities and communities. 

 

We all agree that all LPAs should have a local plan in place. However, the new process squeezes out 

the local community who have the local knowledge of their specific parish. This will result in zero 

confidence by the community in MHCLG, the developers, the local plan and future applications. To 

create more resilience through these proposals is not going to be achieved. 

 

Building by centralised control and driven by market forces would be cataclysmic. LPAs and parish 

councils will have little or no influence over where houses will be built to ensure they meet the needs 

of our community.  

 

This is known as "dismantling localism" and "confiscating democracy".  

 

Access to Plans. 

 

It is vital to be informed about plans and planning proposals in a variety of ways: social media, online 

news, newspaper, by post in addition to the methods employed at present. To only select one method 

would target only one sector of the community. The proposal to move to a digital first approach, by 

moving from documents to data is a good objective and can be adopted whatever planning system we 

chose. However, this in itself does not lend to better place-making or greater democracy. Transparency 

is to be welcomed, but not at the expense of public engagement.  

 

Contributing to Planning Decisions. 

 

Contributing views on local plans and applications is part of a mature democratic process. It is both 

healthy and essential to ensure that decisions are not regretted for generations to come. 

 

This white paper reduces democratic oversight of planning committees, it  replaces a system with a light 

touch fast-tracked system granting automatic planning permission for a type of building within the 

designated zone. In essence this reform will exclude and restrict key stages of the planning process, and 

will make it harder for people to contribute their views to planning decisions. Growth and renewal zones 

Page 30



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 8 of 11 

 

appear to have no oversight or community consultation, whereas 'protected areas' would have some 

retention of a  planning process community involvement. This is unacceptable. 

 

With this scheme, community voices will be drowned out by restrictive rules, shortened consultation 

periods, and unable to present local views on specific applications where mitigation actions are required 

(often unknown at the LPA level). Developers have the opportunity to hide issues so there is never a 

debate about necessary mitigation. 

 

The whole white paper will reduce community engagement and the democratic process.  The outcome 

will be a shift towards authoritarianism. It is naïve to think that one can achieve democracy though 

digitisation. Local people need to be more included from place making through to application decision 

making. It is important that the LPA and the community get the developments they need and in the right 

places.  

 

In seeking to build 300,000 homes a year, is the greatest obstacle the planning system or the 

subsequent build-out of properties with permission? 

 

Permissions Verses Delivery 

 

Councils, commentators and most academics have emphasised that the current planning system today 

is not the root cause of low numbers of housing delivery and houses not being affordable. Despite some 

faults in the current system, it does embrace democracy by allowing LPAs and parishes. 

 

Latest figures show that 2,564,600 units have been granted planning permission by councils since 

2009/10 while only 1,530,680 have been completed. The number of planning permissions granted for 

new homes has almost doubled since 2012/13 with councils approving 9 in 10 applications. For 2018 / 

19, the number of units granted permission was 361,800, whereas the number built was 213,860.  

 

Over the last 10 years the build out rate is between 30% to 40% less than the permissions given. 

 

These figures show that the lack of permissions is not a barrier to house building. The number of homes 

granted planning permission has far outpaced the number of homes being built.  

 

Focus has to be on the roll out of houses. The key to a successful build programme is to stop land 

banking by some developers. MHCLG can tinker with the planning process as much as they like, but 

until the behaviour of developers is managed, the situation will remain the same.  

 

It has to be remembered that developers owe their allegiance to shareholders and not the community. 

The white paper focus should be managing the behaviour of developers, to remove the temptation of 

manipulating the supply and demand economic model to their benefit. Perhaps the idea of charging 

developers with council tax irrespective of whether the homes have been built or not, say after a two-

year period of time since permission was granted. 

 

Housing Algorithm 

 

The housing algorithm is flawed and will undermine local democracy and the right of communities to 

have a strong voice in what gets built in their locality. Algorithms can never be a substitute for local 

knowledge and decision-making by councils and communities who know their area best. Housing 

should be supported by genuine evidence, not arbitrary spreadsheets which ignores the physical and 

economic world. The current formula will allocate more housing to higher priced areas such as the south 

and east, while reducing ambitions for the Northern Powerhouse.  

 

This algorithm as it stands, is a weapon of "Mass Destruction" on the countryside. 

 

Page 31



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 9 of 11 

 

Homes should be driven by local needs based on economic activity, infrastructure, the environment and 

true demand. This algorithm will not “level up” the country as demanded by our Prime Minister. 

 

How can the planning system ensure that buildings are beautiful and fit for purpose? 

 

What is beautiful? Beauty is in the eye of the beholder. If we mean aesthetic, then we can focus more 

clearly on architectural design and how it fits in with the surrounding environment, both natural and 

built. Architecture Design is the process and the product of planning, designing, constructing and 

devising buildings and other physical structures for public good. It has to be attractive for potential 

residents to live; avoid becoming a slum of the future; and not be alluring to antisocial behaviour. 

 

Focusing on design codes and crime prevention through environmental design (CPTED) are two 

important ingredients for a so called “beautiful” design. 

 

Neighbourhood plans, local plans and a safety net of national design codes is the way forward to protect 

the community from failed architectural designs. Unfortunately, some past proposals by developers in 

our town have been far from optimal. They have only become acceptable due to the hard work of the 

parish council fighting for an acceptable vernacular for the locality. Builders naturally want to keep cost 

down by using easy to build design and vernacular, resulting in sacrificed quality design. 

 

A major concern is that design codes have focused on insulation for so long, it has forgotten how to 

keep homes cool in the summer months - this will get worse with climate change. Do all homes now 

have to have air conditioning installed as standard, or will homes be designed better? This is a major 

omission which must be addressed with urgency. 

 

What approach should be used to determine the housing need and requirement of a local 

authority? 

 

Unfortunately, housing need is not looked at in a holistic manner. We as a nation require social, rented 

and private ownership of housing. It is good to have an aspiration of private ownership, but MUST not 

ignore social and rented needs. 

 

As mentioned earlier, housing algorithms do not work as housing needs must take into account, 

economic growth of the locality, demographics, infrastructure that can be afforded or is in place, 

sustainable transport and services that can be affordable to be put in place or already exist.  

 

What is the best approach to ensure public engagement in the planning system?  

 

The principle of public participation in planning is essential, as it is they who are affected by a decision 

and therefore have a right to be involved in the decision-making process. 

 

With the high profile of climate change, biodiversity and other critical topics, these are very much in 

the general public’s sight, therefore planning consultation is critical in ensuring that the best possible 

outcome is achieved for housing the population and protection of our planet. 

 

To disengage with the community is the worst possible scenario and must be avoided in any new 

planning proposal. Trust is the key word and the planning process must ensure this happens. Local 

plans, neighbourhood plans and planning applications must involve the community, as planning is for 

the community and for the benefit of the community, both at local and national level. Raynsford Review 

and the Grosvenor Report very much emphasise that point. 

 

What role should modern technology and data play in this? 

 

Harnessing digital technology is fine for those who are computer literate. What about those who are not 

computer literate, or cannot afford to purchase digital technology? Without the MHCLG answering and 

mitigating this question, you will disenfranchise a large sector of the community. 

Page 32



HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 10 of 11 

 

When asking for opinions, social media can be very divisive with extreme views by a tiny minority of 

the community. This will distort the planning message and put people off communicating their views 

so they are not victimised. 

 

You cannot expect the community to look for information about plans, they must be provided with 

information from the local council proactively. It is the old perpetual argument of “push” and “pull” 

method of communicating. The notice on the lamppost pushes out information. How will the majority 

of the community know there is a planning application without those notices? Yes, you can sign up 

online for notification to pull information, but I would imagine that is for a very small proportion of the 

community. 

 

How can the planning system ensure adequate and reasonable protection for areas and buildings 

of environmental, historical, and architectural importance? 

 

Environmental Protection 

 

Though the white paper mentions the Defra 25-year environment plan, how is it going to be linked? So 

often aspiration falls on stony ground and withers, potentially this will be the case. 

 

Within the white paper there is a section on effective stewardship and enhancement of our natural and 

historic environment. NOT one question on this subject was asked within the consultation. This speaks 

volumes on the importance MHCLG has placed on this subject. Do we want the community to jump to 

the wrong conclusion that this white paper is just paying lip service?  The environment will be side-

lined, as some developers attempt to do at present. It is up to parish councillors and members of the 

public to point out the evidence and show it does not comply with the NPPF and local plans. The LPA 

does not have the resources or knowledge to know when the developer has not disclosed full 

information. 

 

Environmental assessments are not quick activities as there are so many elements to consider and 

investigate. Quick can and will probably mean cursory, which would be totally unacceptable.  

 

MHCLG wants to replace the environmental impact assessment (EIA) process with a ‘simplified 

process’ for assessing environmental impact. Little detail is provided and developers will have the 

ability to ignore environmental concerns with more impunity. How will the simplified process continue 

to provide the same level of environmental protection? All zones must have areas designated within 

them that shield local landscape character areas, local wildlife sites, etc from development.  

 

Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act, came into force in 2006, which 

requires the Secretary of State to publish a list of habitats and species which are of principle importance 

for the conservation of biodiversity in England. This list is maintained and updated by the JNCC. Any 

new planning law has to refer to this list as potentially it will dictate areas that have to be protected as 

sub areas within growth and renewal zones, and / or a protection zone in its own right. This protection 

must be reinforced in the new planning law, otherwise what is the point of having these local 

designations if they are not enforced? Protection with no teeth is no protection at all. 

 

Historical and Architectural Protection 

 

A number of historic towns have conservation areas designated. These together with supplementary 

planning documents and area action plans must be reinforced within any new act of parliament. The 

white paper has side lined these important planning tools. 

 

Countryside 

 

The countryside is not just about beauty, but often is a positive economic contributor in its own right to 

GDP. This could be farming for food security, tourism, leisure, exercise, mitigation against climate 

change and many other positive economic aspects.  

Page 33

https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity/targets/


HCLG Committee Inquiry into the Government’s English Planning System Proposals  

 

Page 11 of 11 

 

 

What changes, if any, are needed to the green belt? 

 

The white paper states that Protected Zones would include sites and areas which, as a result of their 

particular environmental and/or cultural characteristics, would justify more stringent development 

controls to ensure sustainability. This would include areas such as Green Belt, Areas of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONBs), Conservation Areas, Local Wildlife Sites, areas of significant flood risk and 

important areas of green space. 

 

Unfortunately, we know that inspectors allow development on green belt.  

 

a) Would protected zones be acceptable within growth zones to ensure sensitive countryside is not 

destroyed? 

b) Does the definition of green belt need to be redefined as it is no longer the Holy Grail?  

c) Do we need to redefine what an AONB and SSSI should be?  

The community needs faith that these protected areas mean protection with no development. 

 

What progress has been made since the committee’s 2018 report on capturing land value and how 

might the proposals improve outcomes?  

 

The 2018 report is very well written and explains the issues involved in assessing current land use value 

and hope value. The point of cross-party consensus is very well made. 

 

Reading the white paper, it comes over as the authors have not grasped these issues and does not convey 

their understanding of what outcomes they wish to achieve, which is multifaceted. Questions: 

 

a) Do we want to reduce hope value so that houses become more affordable? 

b) Do we want to ensure that any infrastructure and services uplift is paid for by the developer via 

S106 or other means? 

c) Do we want the capability to have cost effective compulsory purchase order mechanisms for 

regeneration, strategic infrastructure and social housing? 

d) Do we want to prevent developers using viability tests, so they do not have to pay for affordable 

housing? 

 

Our view is yes to all those questions above, but there is no obvious easy answer to achieve these 

outcomes. 

 

What further steps might also be needed? 

 

Without overstating the government’s wish to build the right type of homes in the right places at the 

right time, a number of questions have to be answered to manage the outcomes. 

 

a) Where will the economic power houses be developed in the short to long term?  

b) Where will be the centres of employment be? This is where homes will be required.  

c) What type of infrastructure is required and projected cost? 

d) Can sufficient utility services of water, electricity, flood controls, etc be provided in those areas? 

e) Which areas should be ring fenced and protected for the benefit of biodiversity and climate change? 

f) Which areas should be preserved for food security, tourism, leisure and well-being? 

g) What are the housing needs for economically active adults, families and retirees by location? 

 

Any proposed planning systems must satisfy the above outcomes. The planning system has to be a 

democratic facilitator and not a bureaucratic inhibitor. 

Page 34



Committee ReportMonth No: 6

06/10/20
11:46

Tenterden Town Council Page 1
Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 30/09/20

Actual Year To Date Current Annual Bud  Variance Annual Total Committed Expenditure Funds Available % Spent Transfer to/from EMR

Planning
280 Neighbourhood Development Plan

0.0%(8,525)1215 Neighbourhood Plan  8,525 0
08,525Neighbourhood Development Plan :- Income (8,525) 0

26.3%15,474 15,4744215 Neighbourhood Plan  5,526 21,000
21,0005,526Neighbourhood Development Plan :- Indirect Expenditure 15,474 0 15,474 26.3% 0

Net Income over Expenditure 2,999 (21,000) (23,999)

5,526 21,000
(8,525)8,525 0
15,474

2,999

Planning :- Income

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve
Expenditure 0 15,474

0.0%
26.3%

5,526 21,000
(8,525)8,525 0
15,474

2,999 (21,000) (23,999)

Grand Totals:- Income

Net Income over Expenditure
Expenditure 0 15,474

0.0%
26.3%

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve 2,999

Page 35

Agenda Item 12



Nominal Ledger Report by CENTRE User :JCM
Page 106/10/20

12:00
Tenterden Town Council

A/c Code
Centre
Month Date Reference Source Transaction Detail Debit Credit

1215 Neighbourhood Plan
280 Neighbourhood Development Plan

Annual Budget 0
Committed 0

Opening Balance 0.00
3 12/06/20 bacs Cashbook Groundwork UK grant 8,525.00

Account Totals 
8,525.00Net Balance Month 7

Neighbourhood Plan
Neighbourhood Development 

0.00 8,525.00Account
Centre

____________ ____________

A/c Code
Centre
Month Date Reference Source Transaction Detail Debit Credit

4215 Neighbourhood Plan
280 Neighbourhood Development Plan

Annual Budget 21,000
0Committed

Opening Balance 0.00
1 09/04/20 BACS Cashbook Groundworks- grant underspend 1,140.00
2 22/05/20 BACS Cashbook Boot J - consultancy fees 175.00
4 13/07/20 BACS Cashbook Tony Fullwood Associates 4,131.20
5 10/08/20 DD Cashbook Dropbox annual subs 95.88
5 10/08/20 DD Cashbook Dropbox - reversal 95.88
5 10/08/20 DD Cashbook Dropbox annual subs correction 79.90

Account Totals 
5,526.10Net Balance Month 7

Neighbourhood Plan
Neighbourhood Development 

5,621.98 95.88Account
Centre

____________ ____________

Page 36



 

 

Planning Committee 2nd November 2020 
Colour Palette for Tenterden High Street 

 
 

At the High Street Regeneration Sub-committee meeting on 14th October 2020, it was 
agreed that the Planning Committee would be approached with regard to considering a 
colour palette for Tenterden High Street businesses.  The minute is as follows. 
 
Colour palette for the High Street shop frontages.  Mike Carter reported that it has always 
been said that the Town should be black and white.  Emily reported that in other areas it 
does come into planning about specific colours and type font.  Justin suggested asking the 
Planning Committee to look into the designs; Claire reported that this would fall under the 
Conservation Area Management Plan and could be incorporated into those discussions when 
physical meetings can take place again.  Emily reported that she would like to be involved as 
she does this as part of her work.  Roger Quinton reported that there is a design team in the 
Neighbourhood Plan who are looking at this sort of thing.   
 
It was agreed that Claire will add this to the Planning Committee’s November meeting with a 
request to pull together groups to get a way forward in six months’ time.   
 
The Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group are looking at the overall design codes for the 
Town and reported that when the study for the Conservation Area Management Plan 
commences, they would wish to participate.   
 
Proposal:  That the Planning Committee consider incorporating discussions on a colour 
palette for Tenterden High Street as part of the review of the Conservation Area 
Management Plan with the inclusion of other parties as stated in the HSR minutes. 
 
 

 
 
Claire Gilbert 
Deputy Town Clerk 
 
Impact on Crime and Disorder : None 
Impact on Bio-diversity  : None 
Budgetary Impact  : None 

Page 37

Agenda Item 13



Page 38

Agenda Item 14



Page 39



Page 40



This document is available in alternative formats and can be 
explained in a range of languages. 

 
NOTICE OF COMING INTO FORCE OF PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 

 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990,  

SECTION 257 AND PARAGRAPH 7 OF SCHEDULE 14 
 

THE ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL  
(PUBLIC FOOTPATH AB32 (PART) TENTERDEN) 

PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 2015 
 
 

Notice is hereby given that, on 28th September 2020, the Kent County Council 
(on behalf of Ashford Borough Council) certified that the terms of Article 2 of 
the above-named Order, requiring an alternative highway to be created to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the Kent County Council (on behalf of Ashford 
Borough Council), had been complied with.  
 
Accordingly, the above-named Order has now taken effect.   
 
A copy of the Order (and plan) may be viewed online at: 
https://kccconsultations.inconsult.uk/consult.ti/AB32/consultationHome 
 
 
PROW and Access Service 
Invicta House 
County Hall 
Maidstone 
Kent  ME14 1XX 
 
Date: Friday 9th October 2020 
 
 

                
 

Page 41

https://kccconsultations.inconsult.uk/consult.ti/AB32/consultationHome


Planning and Development 
 
Ask for: Sandra Heathcote 
Email: Sandra.heathcote@ashford.gov.uk 
Direct Line: (01233) 330281 
Fax No: (01233) 330682 

 
 
Mr P Burgess  
Town Clerk 
Tenterden Town Council 
Town Hall 
Tenterden 
Kent 
TN30 6AN 
 
 
 
 
Our Ref: EN/16/00348 
Planning Inspectorate  Ref: 1. APP/E2205/C/18/3206835 

 
Date: 20 October 2020 
 

 

 
Dear Mr Burgess, 
 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
 
 
Proposal: Without planning permission, the erection of a building ('the Building') 

used as a single dwellinghouse and the carrying out of excavation works 
to materially alter the levels of the Land to accommodate the Building 

Location: Golan Croft, Cranbrook Road, Tenterden, Kent, TN30 6UP 
Appellant: Mrs Sandra Gillian Relf 

 
 
An Enforcement appeal has been received against the issue of an Enforcement Notice by 
Ashford Borough Council relating to a breach of planning control under paragraph (a) of section 
171(A)(1) or the above Act, at the land described above. 
 
The Notice alleges: 
 
Without planning permission, the erection of a building ('the Building') used as a single 
dwellinghouse and the carrying out of excavation works to materially alter the levels of the Land 
to accommodate the Building. 
  
With reference to the above appeal, the Planning Inspectorate has now confirmed that the 
appeal is being dealt with by way of a public inquiry which will be held as a 'virtual event' and 
which will start at 11.00am on 17/11/2020.  
 

The Inquiry will last approximately 3 days. 
 

Civic Centre 

Tannery Lane 

Ashford 

Kent TN23 1PL 

(01233) 331111 

Typetalk (01233) 330744 

www.ashford.gov.uk 

DX 151140 Ashford (Kent) 7 

 

Page 42



An Inspector, H Higginbottam, has been appointed by the Secretary of State for the 
Environment, Transport and the Regions under paragraph 1(i) of Schedule 6 to the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 to determine this appeal.  
 
Documents relating to the appeal can be viewed on the Council website (EN/16/00348).  
Anyone wishing to attend the Inquiry must make that interest known to the Planning 
Inspectorate Case Officer as soon as possible prior to the Inquiry, either by email or telephone 
after reading the Inquiry Attendance Information set out below.  When contacting the Case 
Officer, it would be helpful if you could confirm whether you want to take an active part in the 
proceedings or attend only as an observer (see below).  

Inquiry Attendance Information 

Before deciding whether to take an active part in the Inquiry, you need to think carefully about 
the points you wish to make.  All written submissions from application and appeal stage will be 
taken into account by the Inspector. Re-stating the same points won’t add any additional weight 
to them. 

If you feel that taking part in the Inquiry is right for you in whatever capacity, you can participate 
in a number of ways: 

To take part using video, participants will need to have access to Microsoft Teams (via an app 
or web browser). This link gives further information: https://support.office.com/en-gb/teams.   

Alternatively you can take part by telephone.  Calls would be to an 020 number which will 
incur charges: https://www.gov.uk/call-charges 

If you just wish to observe the event, you should make that clear in your response to the Case 
Officer.  

If you wish to take an active part in the proceedings, please make clear in your response 
to the Case Officer whether you wish only to appear at the Inquiry and make a statement or 
whether you would also wish to ask questions on particular topics.   

If you want to take an active part but feel unable to for any reason, and/or the points you want 
to make are not covered in the evidence of others, consider whether someone else could raise 
them on your behalf. 

Registered participants, in whatever capacity, will receive individual joining instructions, 
providing details of any requirements, guidance and support, whether joining by Teams or 
telephone.  You should note that the event may be recorded by the Planning Inspectorate for 
training and quality assurance purposes.   

Planning Inspectorate Reference: 
APP/E2205/C/18/3206835                                                                                                                             

Case Officer contact at the Planning Inspectorate: 

Craig Maxwell   

Email: teame2@planninginspectorate.gov.uk 

Telephone 0303 444 5433  

 
The appeal decision will be published on:  https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Sandra Heathcote 
 
for Interim Head of Planning & Development 
       Page 43



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 6 October 2020 

by S J Papworth  DipArch(Glos) RIBA 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date:  23 October 2020 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/E2205/W/20/3254231 

Land adjoining the north side of Hallmark Farm, Ashford Road,  
St Michaels, Tenterden TN30 6SP 
• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by The Trading Post Kent Ltd against the decision of Ashford 
Borough Council. 

• The application Ref 19/01781/AS, dated 20 December 2019, was refused by notice 
dated 16 April 2020. 

• The development proposed is described as a farm shop on the land adjacent to 
Hallmark Farm and change of use from agricultural land to A1 and A3 class of use. 

 

Decision 

1. I dismiss the appeal. 

Main Issues 

2. These are; 

• The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area 

between St Michaels and High Halden. 

• The effect of the proposal on the vitality and viability of Tenterden and St 

Michaels and the surrounding village centres, and the aims of sustainable 

development. 

Reasons 

Character and Appearance 

3. Ashford Local Plan Policy SP1 states the strategic objective of conserving and 

enhancing the natural environment including landscapes and creating high 

quality design.  High quality design is the aim of Policy SP6 and Policy SP7 

states that development on non-allocated sites outside built-up confines will be 
permitted only where its impact, individually or cumulatively, would not result 

in coalescence or merging of two separate settlements, or the significant 

erosion of a gap.  Policy ENV3a sets out criteria for development regarding 
landscape character and design.  New employment premises in the countryside 

are to be integrated sensitively into the context as stated in Policy EMP5  

4. The site is presently an agricultural field and the access from the highway has 

been formed as permitted in July 2018 under reference 18/00739/AS.  The 

land is gently sloping away from the A28 road and is open to the far side.  The 
south boundary is shown to be the masonry wall along the side of the adjoining 

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/E2205/W/20/3254231 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

large dwelling and the north boundary adjoins the curtilage of another dwelling 

where work was in progress at the time of the site inspection. 

5. The wider landscape contains sporadic built form and varied boundary 

treatments along the road, with a hinterland of agricultural fields.  The entry to 

the golf course and hotel is prominent to the south-west, and roadside 
development becomes more visually established a short way to the south 

entering St Michaels and again to the north on the way into High Halden.  The 

conclusion formed at the site inspection and travelling to both these named 
places, is that there is still an identifiable gap through a lessening of the 

density of development and the numerous places where agricultural or 

undeveloped land abuts the road.  The area appears as the type of location 

whose character and appearance Policy SP7 seeks to protect. 

6. The proposed development would consist of a ‘Grasscrete’ parking and turning 
area and a low building set close to the northern boundary with the dwelling.  

The remainder of the site would be open and the appellant refers to the 

possibility of food production being introduced on site or nearby.  The 

‘Grasscrete’ would retain in part the look of open land, but the parking of 
vehicles would erode that impression at times.  The remaining open land could 

retain an agricultural character and appearance, or that of a market garden 

depending on outcomes, but the building would appear as an intrusion into the 
rural landscape and despite its proposed low form, and position relative to the 

dwelling, would further consolidate the sporadic items of built form along the 

road. 

7. The parking and likely activity together with the outside seating would 

introduce a commercial as opposed to an agricultural or rural character to a 
significant part of the site and length of the roadside setting, and the likely 

increased use of the entry onto the main road and any associated signage 

would further consolidate this change. 

8. To conclude, the proposed use and associated building, car parking and activity 

would significantly erode the gap that is presently discernible, and which 
appears vulnerable to such further erosion.  The result would be a definite and 

prominent further risk of the currently separate identities of St Michaels and 

High Halden merging, contrary to the aims of Policy SP7.  The development 

would cause harm to the character and appearance of the area between the 
more built up frontages, and would not accord with Policies SP1, SP6 and 

ENV3a.  The requirement of Policy EMP5 to integrate into the site context 

would not be achieved and the existence of commercial activity associated with 
the adjoining site to the south does not assist in this respect.  

Vitality and Viability 

9. Local Plan Policy SP1 aims to focus development on accessible and sustainable 
locations which utilise existing infrastructure and Policy SP3 is the strategic 

approach to economic development and seeks to maximise town centre 

employment opportunities, while promoting rural employment.  Provision is to 

be made under Policy SP4 for additional floorspace of convenience and 
comparison retail within Tenterden Town Centre through small scale 

development and changes of use. 

10. Although the Council’s Reason for Refusal refers to Policy EMP9 and a 

sequential test, the appellant points out that paragraph 88 of the National 

Page 45

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/E2205/W/20/3254231 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

Planning Policy Framework, within the section on ensuring the vitality of town 

centres, states that the sequential approach should not be applied to 

applications for small-scale rural offices or other small-scale rural development.  
It is reasonable to consider the appeal proposal under the reference to ‘other 

development’ in the context of this section of the Framework, and it is small 

scale.  The supporting text to Policy EMP9 states that it does not apply to small 

scale retail and service provision, which is permitted in accordance with Policy 
EMP10, which concerns provision in local centres and villages, but the site is in 

neither of these locations. 

11. That same paragraph 88 featured in the July 2018 version of the Framework 

and the Local Plan was adopted after that in early 2019, so it is unclear why 

there is an apparent divergence over the need for the test in this type of 
application.  The appellant has nevertheless undertaken a sequential 

assessment which has found no suitable premises.  There is a suggestion that 

premises may be available further afield but that this would not suit the 
business model proposed. 

12. In this connection, the Council have commented on the description of the 

development, as it is considered not to be associated with a farm, so that it 

should be considered as just a shop, albeit selling local farm produce.  The 

appellant has stated that the intention is to source produce locally and possibly 
grown on site and that the proposal represents diversification and an 

enhancement of rural employment opportunities. 

13. The other connected part of this Main Issue is the Council’s view that without 

justification for the location, there would be an over-reliance on the use of 

private vehicles, contrary to policies which seek to promote sustainable 
development.  The location of farm shops close to or on the holding would not 

be unusual and the presence of the proposed eatery would enhance the 

shopping experience. 

14. Both of these considerations carry weight, and support for a prosperous rural 

economy is a stated aim in section 6 of the 2019 Framework.  However, the 
harm that has been identified in the previous main issue is real and serious, 

and there is no substantial evidence other than ownership, of the need for the 

enterprise to be located in this site within the vulnerable gap. 

Conclusions 

15. The need for a sequential test appears contradictory, but in any event the 

appellant has failed to find suitable premises higher up the sequence.  As to the 

accessibility aspect of sustainable development, the presence of a farm shop in 
a rural location would not be unusual and aften aids farm diversification and 

rural employment.  However, the area of land along the A28 between St 

Michaels and High Halden is valuable in preventing the coalescence or merging 
of the two separate settlements, and the appeal proposal would bring about a 

real and harmful erosion of a gap that is already vulnerable through sporadic 

development.  The building and car park would consolidate that sporadic 

development to the detriment of the character and appearance of the area. 

16. Turning to the 3 overarching objectives of sustainable development stated at 
paragraph 8 of the Framework, there would be some economic benefit but this 

is not land in the right place and would not be so readily able to make use of 

existing transport as would a town centre site.  The social objective could be 

Page 46

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/E2205/W/20/3254231 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

furthered through access to fresh produce, and the social interaction at the 

eatery, but that could be pursued within town centres in a more inclusive way 

for people without access to their own transport.  The environmental objective 
would be poorly served through the harm identified and this latter is conclusive 

in the conclusion that for the reasons given above the appeal should be 

dismissed. 

 

S J Papworth 

 

INSPECTOR 

Page 47

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	8 NOTIFICATION OF DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS.
	9 DECISIONS OF THE ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE.
	10 SUB-COMMITTEE & WORKING GROUPS.
	11 CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS FOR REFORM OF THE PLANNING SYSTEM IN ENGLAND
	Response to HCLG Planning System Inquiry

	12 FINANCIAL REPORTS
	NHP Income & Expenditure 30_09_20

	13 CONSERVATION AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN.
	14 MINOR MATTERS.
	CERTIFICATION NOTICE AB32
	TTC - Golan Croft Inquiry letter to interested parties
	Appeal Decision North Side Hallmark Farm


